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PAULDING COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

240 Conslitution Bivd. * Dallas, Georgia 30132
Telephone 770-505-1352 * Fax 770-505-1353

December 22, 2011

Board of Commissioners and Citizens
Paulding County, Georgia

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of Paulding County, Georgia, for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2011, is submitted herewith as mandated by local ordinances and the
State of Georgia statutes. These ordinances and statutes require that Paulding County
issue annually a report on its financial position and activity, and that this report be
audited by an independent firm of certified public accountants. Responsibility for both
the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation,
including all disclosures, rests with the County. To the best of our knowledge and belief,
the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed
to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds of the
County. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the
County’s financial activities have been included.

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
control structure which is designed to ensure that the assets of the county are protected
from loss, theft, or misuse; and to ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to
allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of the control should not exceed the benefits likely
to be derived; and (2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and
judgments by management.

Georgia statutes require an annual audit by an independent firm of certified public
accountants. The Board of Commissioners selected the accounting firm of Mauldin &
Jenkins CPAs, LI.C. The auditor’s report on the basic financial statements and schedules
is included in the financial section of this repott.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD &A) immediately follows the independent
auditor’s report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic
financial statements. MD&A complement this letter of transmittal and should be read in
conjunction with it.
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Profile of Paulding County

Paulding County, incorporated in 1832, was the 87" county created in Georgia and was
named after John Paulding, a soldier in the Revolutionary War. Paulding County’s rich
historical resources include a number of well-preserved Civil War memorials, including
the New Hope Church that was the site of the 1864 battle between General Sherman and
Confederate General Johnston. The County is located approximately 29 miles northwest
of Atlanta and ranks as one of the top ten fastest growing counties in the nation. The
County has a land area of 314 square miles and a population of approximately 142,324

Policymaking and legislative authority are vested in the governing authority, consisting
of a five-member Board of Commissioners, including a full-time Chairman. The
Commission Chairman is elected at large, while the four other members are elected by
district. All members serve four-year, staggered terms. The commission is responsible,
among other things, for adopting ordinances and budgets, appointing committees, and
confirming department heads. The Chairman is the chief executive and is responsible for
carrying out policies and ordinances of the commission and for appointing the heads of
the County’s departments. The County Administrator is responsible for the daily
operations of County functions in accordance with policies of the Board of
Commissioners. The governing authority of the County is empowered to levy a property
tax on both real and personal property located within its boundaries.

This report includes all funds of the County, as well as its component units. Component
units are either 1) legally separate entities for which the County is financially
accountable; or 2) entities whose relationship with the County is of a nature and
significance that exclusion would cause the County’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. Discretely presented component units are reported in a
separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that they are
legally separate from the primary government and to differentiate their financial position
from those of the primary government,

The County provides a full range of services which include law enforcement and fire
protection; the construction and maintenance of roads, streets, bridges, and infrastructure;
water and sewer; solid waste; and recreational and cultural activities. The Paulding
County Board of Education and WellStar Paulding Medical Center have not met the
established criteria for inclusion in the reporting entity, and accordingly, are excluded
from this report.

Budgeting Controls. The County maintains extensive budgetary controls. The objective
of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the
annual appropriated budget approved by the County’s Board of Commissioners.
Activities of the general fund, special revenue funds, capital projects fund and debt
service fund, are included in the annual appropriated budget. Annual budgets for the
enterprise funds are adopted for management and control purposes. Project-length
financial plans are adopted for certain capital projects. The level of budgetary control
(the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is at the




department level, The County also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one
method of maintaining budgetary control. Encumbered amounts lapse at year-end.
However, outstanding encumbrances generally are re-appropriated as part of the
following year’s budget.

Local Economy

The County’s unemployment rate of 10.5% represents a slight decrease from last year
and is slightly higher than the rate of 10.1% for the State of Georgia. This increase in
unemployment rate is attributed to the housing market crisis being experienced nation
wide as well as the economic downturn also experienced nationwide. However,
Paulding County is not experiencing as significant an impact on the homeownership rate
as the state. Paulding County continues to hold a high home-ownership rate of 80.9%
and 7.2% of the families living below the poverty level, compared to State averages of
67.5% and 16.6%, respectively.

The County’s rapid residential growth slowed substantially. Commercial construction,
however, has experienced a less intensive slow down compared to housing. A positive
outlook for future growth is the opening of the County’s general aviation airport. The
County’s transition from a bedroom community into a more self-sustaining community
will present significant challenges for the County, as the demand for services will change.
To meet the needs of these changes the County is exploring new methods of obtaining
financial resources and providing higher quality and more efficient services at less cost.
The County is in its first year of a six-year special purpose local option sales tax
(SPLOST) used to fund the construction and improvement of roads, construction of
recreational facilities, and public safety capital improvements. Since 1988, the County’s
voters have supported six consecutive referendums for a special purpose local option
sales tax (SPLOST) for the County, as well as, five consecutive similar referendums for
the construction of schools.

Long-term financial planning
All amounts, unless otherwise indicated are expressed in thousands of dollars.

General Fund Balance. The fund balance of the general fund remained stable in 2011, as
a result of conservative spending policies and budget control measures. The unassigned
fund balance of $18,359 represents 129 working days of expenditures. This level of
unassigned fund balance should significantly reduce the likelihood of the County entering
the short-term debt market to pay current operating expenditures,

Proprietary Operations. The County’s propriefary operations are comprised of three,
separate and distinct activities: the Water and Sewer System, the Solid Waste Disposal
System and the Department of Family and Children’s Services (DFCS) facility. The
Water and Sewer System operates with no subsidy from the County’s General Fund.
Revenue from the Solid Waste Disposal System generates approximately 80 % of its cost
to operate. The State of Georgia leases the space for DFCS from the County, the
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proceeds of which provide revenue sufficient to cover the costs of operations and debt
service. Paulding County’s Water and Sewer System recently upgraded its aging
infrastructure and completed a sewer system treatment facility expansion to encourage
commercial growth.

Under the provisions of GASB Statement Number 18, the County reports an accrual of
$3,313 for landfill closure and post closure care costs as of June 30, 2011. The Landfill is
incurring an annual accrual for the anticipated post closure care cost and monitoring the
closure of the landfill.

Debt Administration. At June 30, 2011, the County had a number of debt issues
outstanding. These issues included $79,385 of general obligation bonds, and $45,595 of
revenue bonds. The County maintains an Aa3 rating from Moody’s Investor Service and
a AA rating from Standard and Poor’s Rating Service on general obligation issues and for
the revenue issues, an A2 from Moody’s and AA-stable from Standard and Poor’s.

Under current Georgia statutes, the County’s general debt issuances are subject to legal
limitation based on 10 percent of total assessed value of real and personal property. As
of June 30, 2011, the County’s net general obligation bonded debt of $78,072 was well
below the legal limit of $339,767. General obligation debt per capita equaled $548

(five hundred and forty-eight dollars).

For the Future. During the next four years, the County will complete a number of
ambitious capital projects, along with designations of certain areas of the County as
special zoning districts to enhance the quality of residential and commercial growth.

Tn the fall of 2008, the County opened a general aviation airport. The initial length of the
runway is 5500 feet, expandable to 6500 feet. The County also enlisted the services of a
consultant with expertise in airport-related economic development master plans, That
plan was completed during 2007. The economic development efforts associated with the
airport project will be funded through public-private partnerships, in addition to federal,
state and local funds. Due to increasing demand and limited availability of hanger space
in the Atlanta Metropolitan Area, the planned Paulding Northwest Atlanta Airport has
generated considerable interest in the aviation community. The first phase of hangers is
completed and 75% of them are leased with a new 35,000 square foot hanger expected to
be completed in 2012. A fuel farm is now operational. This allows for aircraft to
purchase fuel at the airport. The County’s master plan for the area includes clustered,
self-sustainable, high-tech living-working-recreation development with a green focus.
The Industrial Building Authority partnered with the State of Georgia for construction of
the Airport Terminal Building which opened in April 2010. A Fixed Base Operator
(FBO) was selected, “Paulding Jet Center” and is currently operational. Aerodymnamics,
Tnc., a full-service flight and maintenance repair firm, recently announced a planned
expansion of their current facilities to the Paulding Jet Center, planned for 2012.
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Paulding County recently partnered with Cities of Dallas and Hiram, Chamber of
Commerce as well as other public and private businesses to form the Economic
Development Organization. The Paulding County EDO has been tasked with creating
jobs and bringing industry to Paulding.

Paulding County Industrial Building Authority recently contracted with RoadTown
Enterprises to construct and manage a film studio. Construction began in 2011 and is
expected to be complete and operational in early 2012. The film studio is currently
located within the local union’s 30 mile zone that makes filming more affordable.

The County has acquired right-of-way for a major by-pass in the Hiram area. Funding
has been released at the state level and construction began in 2011, The by-pass will
relieve traffic congestion in the County’s primary commercial district. The by-pass is
expected to open in 2012.

To address the leisure and recreational needs of its family-focused community, the
County has purchased approximately 160 acres in the Burnt Hickory area, near the 700-
acre, proposed Richland Creek Reservoir site. Development began in early 2010 on the
County’s fourth multi-putpose park and became operational in 2011. The County has
purchased 166 acres in the Union area. This will be the County’s fifth multipurpose park
and is currently in the design phase.

Relevant financial policies

Paulding County’s financial policies were established with the primary goal to provide a
sound basis for future financial planning and conservative management. These policies
include (1) a balanced annual operating budget, (2) maintenance of adequate unassigned
fund balance.

In developing and evaluating the County’s accounting system, consideration is given to
the adequacy of internal accounting controls. Internal controls are designated to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding the reliability of financial records for
preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of control should not exceed the
benefits likely to be derived: and (2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management. We believe the County’s internal accounting
controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper
recording of financial transactions.

Budgetary control is maintained at the department level by the encumbrance of estimated

purchase amounts before the release of purchase orders to vendors. Open encumbrances
are reported as assigned fund balances at year-end for governmental funds.
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Major Initiatives

For the Year. In preparing the 2011 budget, the County’s staff, under specific directives
from the governing authority, identified several major programs necessary to meet the
citizens® needs for services and to safeguard the environment. These programs reflect the
County’s commitment to continued improvement in the quality of life for its citizens.

Throughout the year, the County continued its improvement program for transportation,
which consisted of system additions, improvements to collector roads, and major
intersection improvements.

Paulding was the first County in Georgia to implement mandatory residential water reuse
for outdoor watering, The County began constructing the expansion and conversion of
the County’s oldest Wastewater Treatment Facility, the Coppermine Plant, to a
membrane bioreactor plant, enabling the plant to obtain a discharge permit and to provide
reuse water for future development in the area. This project was completed in 2009. In
2011, the reuse project was expanded to homeowners within select subdivisions in the
north-east section of the County.

Also during the coming years, and to be carried out concurrently with the airport project,
the County will work closely with the Industrial Building Authority in an aggressive
pursuit of economic development. Planned projects include the acquisition of land
adjacent to the airport for the development of a business park, as well as other business
patk developments in close proximity to the County’s existing sewer plants. The most
notable business park is the 100 acre Industrial Park equipped with a Norfolk-Southern
rail spur, This site is capable of housing facilities up to 500,000 square feet. It will be
located off of Bill Carruth Parkway which is currently under construction for widening to
four lanes, completion is anticipated in late 2011.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the County for its comprehensive
annual financial report for the year ended June 30, 2010. This was the fifteenth,
consecutive year that the County has received this prestigious award. In order to be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the government published an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report satisfied both
generally accepled accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our
current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of
Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine
its eligibility for another certificate.
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The preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report on a timely basis was
made possible by the efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance
Department. Each member of the department has my sincere appreciation for the
contributions made in the preparation of this report.

In closing, without the progressive leadership of the Board of Commissioners,
preparation of this report would not have been made possible.

Respectfully submitted,
lishe Sl ///\

Tabitha Pollard Michael L. Jones, P.E.
Finance Director County Administrator
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, LLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners
Paulding County, Georgia

We have audiled the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented comnponent units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Paulding County, Georgia (the “County”), as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the County’s management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit, We did not audit
the financial statements of the Paulding County Board of Health, the Paulding County Industrial Building
Authority, and the Paulding County Airport Authority, which represents 100% of the assets, net assets,
and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units. Those financial statements were
audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it
relates to the amounts included for the Paulding County Board of Health, the Paulding County Industrial
Building Authority, and the Paulding County Airport Authority, is based on the reports of the other
auditors,

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. The financial statements of the Paulding County Industrial Building Authority
and the Paulding County Airport Authority were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We belicve that our audit and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Paulding County, Georgia, as of
June 30, 2011 and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof
for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles gencrally accepted in the United States
of Awmerica.

200 GALLERIA PARKWAY S.E, SUITE 1700 » ATLANTA, GA 300395946 * 770-955-8600 ¢ B0D-277-0080 ¢ FAX 770-980-4489 « www.mjcpa.com
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As discussed in Note A, Paulding County, Georgia implemented Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions, as of July 1, 2010,

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 22, 2011, on our consideration of the County’s infernal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our festing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to pravide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the
results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis (on pages 5 through 12), schedule of funding progress (on page
62), and budgetary comparison information (on pages 63 through 66) be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial siatements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.




Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund
financial statements and schedules and the schedule of expenditures of special purpose local option sales
fax proceeds, as required by the Official Code of Georgia 48-8-21, as listed in the table of contents, are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The introductory and statistical sections are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it,

M e, & &,&m e

Atlania, Georgia
December 22, 2011




Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of Paulding County Government, we offer readers of Paulding County’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Paulding County for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2011. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction
with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages
iv through ix of this report.

All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands for dollars.

Financial Highlights

o The assets of Paulding County exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2011, by $504,840 (net assets),
an increase of $15,999 from the prior year, Of this amount, $29,997 (unrestricted net assets) may
be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

o Asof June 30,2011, Paulding County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $59,117, an increase of $2,822 from the prior year. Approximately $18,359 is
available for spending at the government’s discretion (unassigned fund balance).

o At the fiscal year end, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $18,359, or 35 percent
of general fund expenditures.

o Paulding County’s governmental activitics bonds payable, net decreased by $2,914 from the prior
year and the total general obligation long-term debt at June 30, 2011 was $79,385, compared to a
legal debt timit of $339,767.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Paulding County’s basic fmancial
statements. Paulding County’s basic financial statements comprise threc components: 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also
contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide the reader with a broad overview of Paulding County’s financial position in a manner similar to
private-sector business. These statements include the Stateinent of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities and can be found on pages 14 through 17 of this report.

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of Paulding County’s assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presenis information showing how Paniding County’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only resuit in cash flows in future fiscal
periods {e.g., for uncollected taxes and earned but unused employee leave). Because the Statement of
Activities separates program, or function revenue (revenue generated by specific functions through charges
for services, grants and contributions) from general revenue (revenue provided by taxes and other sources
not tied to a specific function), it shows to what extent each function must rely on taxes for funding. All
changes in net assets are reported using the accrual basis of accounting which is similar to the method used
by most private-sector enterprises. The accrual basis of accounting requires that revenues be reported when
they are earned and expenses are reported when the goods and services are received, regardless of the
timing of the cash flows. Items such as uncollecied taxes, unpaid vendor invoices for items received during




the fiscal year, and earned, but unused employce leave, are included in the Statement of Activities as
revenues and expenses, even though the cash associated with these ilems was not reccived nor distributed
during the fiscal year.

Paulding County has identified the Paulding County ndustrial Building Authority (TBA), Paulding County
Airport Authority and the Paulding County Board of Health as component units due to the significance of
their operational or financial relationships with the County. Financial information for these component
units is reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 14 — 17 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. Paulding County, like other state and local governmenits,
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of
the funds of Paulding County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprictary funds,
and fiduciary funds. Governmental funds are used to account for most or all of the County’s tax-supported
activities. Proprietary funds are used to account for the County’s business-like activities, where all or a
substantial portion of the costs of activities are supported by fees and charges paid directly by users of the
services. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources that are held by the County as a trustee or agent
for parties outside of County government. The resources of the fiduciary funds cannot be used fo support
the County’s own programs.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on neat-term inflows
and outflows of expendable resources, as well as on balance of expendable resources available at the end of
the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the County’s near-term financing
requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the inforination presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the County’s near-term financing decisions,
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures
and chauges in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental
funds and governmental activities.

Paulding County maintains fifteen individual governmenial funds. Information is presented separately in
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances for the general fund, the SPLOST I fund, the SPLOST IV fund, the fire tax fund
and the capital projects fund all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the remaining
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of
these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere i this
report.

Paulding County adopts au annual appropriated budget for its governmental funds. Budgetary comparison
staternents for these funds have been provided to demonstrate compliance with these budgets.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 18 through 21 of this report.

Proprietary funds, Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements. Paulding County uses enterprise funds to account




for its Water and Sewer System, Solid Waste operations and the Department of F amily and Children’s
Services building. :

The enterprise fund financial statements provide separate information for the Water and Sewer System
which is to be considered a major fund of Paulding County. The other two enterprise funds of the County
arc apgregated into a single presentation in the basic proprictary fund financial statements. Individual fund
data for each of the non-major proprietary funds is provided in the form of combining statements. The
proprietary fund combining statements follow the governmental fund combining statements in this report,
on pages 92 through 94.

Fiduciary funds, Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the County government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement
because the resources of those funds are not available to support Paulding County’s own prograims. The
accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. The basic fiduciary fund
financial statements can be found on page 26.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a fult
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements are on pages 27 through 60.

Other information. Tn addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information concerning Paulding County’s progress in funding its
obligation to provide pension benefits and budgetary comparison information. Required supplementary
information can be found on pages 61 through 66 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

Statement of Net Assets, As noted earlicr, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the
County’s financial position. As of June 30, 2011, Paulding County’s combined (government and business-
type activities) assets exceeded liabilities by $504,840. A significant portion of the County’s net assets, 83
percent, is its mvestment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, infrastructure, and equipment), less related
outstanding debt that was used to acquire those assets. Because Paulding County uses these capital assets
to provide services to its residents, these assets are not available for future spending. Although Paulding
County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot
be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Paulding County's Net Assets
for itie year ended June 30,

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activilies Total
2011 ©o2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Cuirent and other assets $ - 68352 S 63,728 S 35,219 S 37,944 3 103,571 S 106672
Caputaf Assels 390,062 379,562 165,281 165,708 553,343 545270

Total Assels 458,414 448,290 200,500 203,652 658914 651,942
Long-term liabilities
outsianding 35,403 87,978 58,211 61,668 143 614 149,646
Other habihnes 5,434 7.644 5,025 5,810 10,459 13,454

Total liabilitics 90,837 95,622 63,236 67,478 154,073 163,100
Nert assels: '
Invested in capital assets, nel -
of related debt 309,392 297,040 110,693 111,121 420,085 408,161
Resiricted 33,998 33,746 20,760 18,497 54,758 52243
Unrestricled 24,187 21,882 5,811 6,556 29998 28438

Total net assels S 367,577 5 152,668 $ 137,264 S 136,174 § 501841 S 488,842




An additional portion of the County’ net assets for governmental activities, $33,998; and for business-type
activities, $20,760, represent resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.
The governmental restricted resources represent SPLOST funds for roads, recreatiou and public safety
capital improvements, and certain judicial expenses or activities. The $13,474 for business-type activities
is restricted to water and sewer system improvements and $7,286 is restricted for debt service. The
remnaining balances of unrestricted assets, $24,187 for governmental activities, and $5,811 for business-
type activities may be used to meet the County’s ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors.

At June 30, 2011, Paulding County is able to report positive balances in all categories of net assets, both for
the government as a whole, and for its separate governmenial and business-type activities.

Paulding County’s property taxes decreased $1,768 a 4 % decrease from the prior year. Sales and other
taxes increased by $160 or about 1% froin last year. Approximately 26% of the County’s total revenue
from governmental activities came from sales tax and 43 % from property tax. Charges for goods and
services provided about 11 % of governmental revenue, Increase in capital grants and contribution is the
result of state and federal participation in East Hiram Parkway. Grants from Federal Airport
Administration were less in fiscal year 2011 than in 2010.

The County’s largest expense is for Public Safety (Sheriff, Fire, Marshall, E-911, EMA and Animnal

Control), at $30,213, or 38% of total governmental expenses.
>
: Paulding County's Changes n Net Assels
For the year ended June 30

Governmental B usiness-lype
Aclivities Acuivilies Toial
Revenues: 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Program Revenues:
Charges for services s 10,434 $ 11,250 H 24,562 S 23,057 s 35,096 $ 34307
O perating grants and
coniributions 726 455 - - 726 455
Capilal grants and
contributions 11,523 9,600 337 1,131 12,360 11,331
General Revenues: - - -
Property laxes 40,962 42,230 - - 40,462 42,230
Other laxes 31,431 31,21 - - 31,431 31,271
O ther 99 193 82 113 : 181 306
Tolal Revenues 94,675 94,999 25,581 24,901 120,256 119,900
E xpenses:
General government 13,858 14 099 - - 11,358 14,099
Judigial 5,110 5,152 - - 5,110 5,152
Public safety 30,213 29,170 - - 30,213 29,170
Pub lic works 18,359 18,418 - - 18,359 18418
Culture and recreation 31,576 3,108 - - 3,576 3,408
Health and welfare 1,902 1,914 - - 1,902 1914
Housing and
development 3,373 2,835 - - 3,373 2,835
" Intergovernmental - 4,056 - - - 4,056
Interest on long -term
debt 3,175 3,585 - - 3,175 3,685
W ater and sewer - - 23,525 22,765 23,625 22,765
Other programs - - £,066 1,068 1,066 1,068
Tolal Expenses 79,566 82,737 24,691 23,833 104,257 106,570
Increase in n¢t assels -
before Iransiers 15,109 12,262 390 1,068 15,999 13,330
Transiers (200) 2,455 200 {2,455) - -
Change in nel assels 14,909 14,717 1,090 {1,387) 15,99% 13,330
Netassels -beginning,
belore restalement 351,460 336,743 - 136,174 137,561 487,634 474,304
Restatement 1,208 - - - 1;203 -
Nerassers-begmning,
afler restatement 152,668 336,743 136,174 137,561 483,842 474 304
Netassets ending § 367577 S 351,460 3 137,264 $ 136,174 S 504,841 $ 487634




The $14,909 increase in net assets for governmental activities was attributable to revenues exceeding
expenses, as well as reimbursement of 2009 flood expenses and the federally funded construction of East
Hiram Parkway. The restatement of $1,208 is a grant reimbursement for the right of way located on East

Hiram Parkway. The grant purchases were made in 2010 as well as 2011, but reimbursement was received
in 2011. The $1,090 increase in net assets for business-type activities was the result of revenues exceeding

expenses. The Landfill’s long term liabilities of $3,313 allow for closure and post-closure care costs.

Revenues by Source for Governmental Activities
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, Paulding County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds, The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such informaiion is useful in assessing the
County’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance nay serve as a useful measure of
a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

Paulding County ended the 2011 fiscal year with positive fund balances in its governmental funds. The
combined Tund balance for the governmental funds is $59,117. Of that amount, fund balances in the
County’s five major funds are $22,728 in the General Fund, $6,028 in the Fire Fund, $20,868 in SPLOST
I1T Fund, $2,993 in SPLOST 1V fund and $2,224 in Capital Projects Fund. Approximately 31 percent of
total governmental fund balances, $18,359 in the General is unassigned and available for spending in the
coming year. The assigned fund balance is not available for new spending rather it is assigned to {12011
ouistanding encumbrances $1,675, future landfill closure cost $1,425, and $547, was obligated to the 2012
adopted budget. The committed fund balance is in the Sheriff Commissary fund and the Sheriff comnmitted
the funds to be used for the inmates. The remainder of fund balance is restricted or non-spendable in nature
($370) to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it is restricted 1) to pay debt service
($1,314); 2) fire department expenditures (6,028);and 3) for other restricted purposes ($4,638). The
$23,861 fund balance in SPLOST III and TVwill be spent to construct a major County park facility, a fire
station and other public safety facilities, as well as road improvements.

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of Paulding County. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $18,359, while total fund balance was $22,728. Asa
measure of the County’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both the unassigned and total fund balance
to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 35% of total General Fund expenditures,
while total fund balance represents 44 % of that same amount.

The fund batance of the General Fund increased by $3,333. While operational revenues declined as well as
tax revenue, expenditures were also reduced to offset the decline in revenue. Changes in revenue for all
governmental funds from the prior year are as follows:

o Total revenue increased by $3,182 from the prior year,

o Property tax revenue decreased by $1,767 as a resuit of the decline in residential property values,
while the local option sales tax increased by $75. _

o Charges for services decreased $816, as a result of a decline in residential development as well as

a decline in judicial fees.
o The reduction of assessed values has resulted in a decrease to tax commissions revenue of $36.

The fund balance of the Fire Tax Fund decreased by $275. The fire tax is primarily funded with property
tax, and therefore the reduction in property values has resulted in a reduction in revenues.

SPLOST III, SPLOST IV and Capital Projects funds are all used to account for Capital Projects. The fund
balance of the SPLOST 11T fund also decreased by $3,497. However, SPLOST III expired m 2011 and
SPLOST TV began in April 2011. SPLOST IV currently has a fund balance of $2,993. The Capital
Projects fund accounts for projects funded by sources other than SPLOST revenues. The fund balance of
the Capital Projects Fund also decreased by $209.

Proprietary Funds

Paulding County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial staternenis, but in more detail.
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Two of the County’s Enterprise Funds, the Water and Sewer System and Solid Waste Disposal, provide
services to the general public and require periodic evaluation and determinaiion of revenues. The County
also maintains an Enterprise Fund for a rental facility which is currently leased to the State of Georgia,
Department of Family and Children’s Services and Child Support Enforcement.

The largest, and only major Enterprise Fund is the Water and Sewer Fund. Total operating revenue from
the Water and Sewer System for 2011 was $23,487 representing an 8 % increase from 2010. The County,
along with other metro counties subsequently implemented a rate increase to offset the 5% increase in
expenses. The cost of the County’s water purchased increased 10% from 2010. This increase was due to
an increase passed on to the County by the County’s supplier Cobb County Marietta Water Authority.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The legal level of control (the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations) is at the
department level. The County’s primary budgeted fund is the General Fund. The Board of Commissioners
is required to adopt the County’s budget at their first regular meeting each August. The General Fund
Budget was amended during the year for an increase in appropriations of $4,198. The most notable
expenditure amendments are as follows:

o Public Works increased by $3,225 due to additional maintenance and asphalt contracts issued.
The cost of this expense was parily covered by the State of Georgia $360 and developers
$249.

o Public Safety appropriations were reduced by $347 due to conservative spending.

o Health and Welfare increased by $288, Culture and Recreation increased by $67, Housing &
Development increased by $116 and Judicial increased by $30.

o General Government appropriations were increased by $818 due to increase in employee
benefit cost as well as additional Reservoir cost.

Indicative of increased foreclosure rates and other reduction in property values, property tax revenue
decreased 4%, other taxes decreased 2%. At June 30, 2011, General Fund revenues exceeded estimates by
$ 1,921, and expenditures were $3,575 less than budget. The General Funds balance increased by $3,333.

Budget versus actual amounts: Pauiding County General Fund remained within the operating budget
during fiscal year 2011. Expenses were evaluated and reduced throughout the year in anticipation of
another decline for fiscal year 2012. Actual expense was less than budget in all functions except heaith and
welfare. Actual exceeded budget in health and welfare by ($24). This overageisa result of the additional
cost incurred with Paulding Hospital Authority.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

The County’s investment in capital assets for iis governmental and business-type activities as of June 30,
2011 amounts to $420,085 (net of accumulated depreciation and related debt). This investment in capitai
assets includes land, buildings and systems, machinery and equipment, and construction in progress.

The total increase in Paulding County’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 3
percent. Additional information on Paulding County’s capital assets can be found in note E on pages 40
through 43 of this report. :

Long-term debt: At June 30, 201 1, Paulding County had a total of $124,980 in outstanding bonded debt.
That amount represents $79,385 in General Obligation Courthouse, Jail, Administrative Building,
Reservoir, conservation and Government Complex Bonds; and $45,595 in Water and Sewer Revenue
Bonds. The County also had one installnent purchase agreement with an outstanding balance of $1,093,
and two Georgia Environmental Finance Authority loans totaling $729.
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Paulding County maintains an “Aa3” rating from Meody’s and an “AA” rating from Standard and Poor’s
on its General Obligation debt and an “AA” rating from Moody’s and an “AA-stable” rating from Standard
and Poor’s on its Revenue debt.

Additional information on the County’s long-tenn debt can be found in note G. on pages 44 through 52.

Economic Factors and Next year’s Budgets and Rates

o The unemployment rate for Paulding County was down from last year, at 10.5%. This rate
compared to the state’s rate of 10.1%. ' ,

o For the tax year 2010, the County’s total tax digest decreased by $703,645 or 17%. Paulding
County has reduced cost to balance this reduction in revenue with a reduction in expenses,

o Paulding County’s general purpose Local Option Sales Tax enabled the County to roliback its
property tax rate by 3.6 mills for the 2010 tax year.

- Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Paulding County’s tinances for all those
with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
“report or requests for additional financial should be addressed to Paulding County Finance Department, 240
Constitution Boulevard, Dallas, Georgia 30132.
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Basic Financial Statements
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Paulding County, Georgia
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES TN FUND BALANCES WITH THE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the year ended June 30, 2011

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds $ 2,822,238
Amaunts reported for governmental aciivities in the statement of activities are different because:

Capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets are reported in govemmental funds
as expenditures. However, for govemmental activities those costs are shown in the
statement of et assers and allocated over their estimated uscful lives as annual

depreciation expenses in the statement of activities.

Depreciation expense {11,623,786)
Capital outlays 22,270,133 10,646,347
The net effect of miscellaneous transactions invalving capital assets is to decrease net asscls. (146,260)

Pension asset reported in the statement of activities does not
require the use of current financial cesources and therefore

is not reported as a revenuc in govemmental funds. (23,922)

Amortization of bond issuance cost and bond premium reported in the statement of activitics
does not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore is not reported 25

expendirures in governmental funds. 482,085

Revenues in the staternent of activities that do net provide curtent financial resources

are not reported as cevenues in the funds. (1,208,271)

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the govemmental funds,
but ihe repayment reduces long-team Yiabilities in the statement of act assets. 2,395,000

Propeny taxes levied For the current and prior years not collected within sixty
days after the County’s fiscal year ends, are not considered "available"
revenucs and are deferred in the govemmental funds. Deferred tax

revenues related 1o prior years decreased by this amount this year.

Deferred @ 06/30/11 2,101,303
Deferred @ 06/30/10 (2,110,924) (9,621)

In the siatement of achivities, certain o perating expenses - compensated absences
{sick pay and vacations) - are measured by the amounts camed during the year.

In the govemmental funds, howevet, expenditures for these items are measured by
the amount of linancial resources used (essentially, the amounts paid),

Vacation and sick eamed exceeded amounts paid by this amount.

Liabiity @ 06/30/11 (3,241,999)
Liabity @ 06/30/10 2,503,Li5 (338,884)

Tnterest on long-term debi in the starement of acsivities diffors from the amount
reported in the governmental funds because interest is recognized as an expenditure
in the funds when it is duc, and thus requites the use of cureent financial resources.
In the statement of activitics, however, interest expensc is recognized as the interest

accrues, regandless of when it is due.

Liability (@ 06/30/11 (1,510,704)
Liability @ 06/30/10 1,547,595 36,39

Debt payments are cuscently being made on behal( of 2 component unit. The

funds paid out for seres A will be repaid to the County in future pesiods. These debr

payments are expensed on the govemmenta] fund statements, buta recievable is

recorded on the government wide statements, 253,553

Change in net assets of governmental aclivities $ 14,909,116
The accompanying nates are e infegral par! of this stelemen!. 2 l




Paulding County, Georgia
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2011
Buslness-lype Acilvitles-Enterprise Funds Governmen(al
Major Fund Aclivitles
Waler and Non-Major Inlernal Service
Sewer Fund Enlerprise Funds Total Fund
ASSETS
Cyrrent Assels
Cash $ 3144966 & 221,13 8 8,366,100 $ .
Reslricted cash 22,316,012 - 22,316,012 -
Accounis receivable, net 3,505,211 53,565 3,558,776 -
Due fiom other funds 65,688 - 65,688 -
Inventory 184,514 - 184,514 -
Total current assels 34,216,391 274,699 34,491,090 -
Noncurrenl assels:
Capital assels
Land 1,414,797 612,21 2,027,030 -
Plent and equipment 205,510,346 5,150,467 210,660,813
Consiruction in progress 61,098 - 61,098 -
T.ess: accumulated deprecialion {45,101,368) {2,366,238) (47,467,606} -
Net capilal assels 161,384,873 3,396,462 165,281,335 _ -
Bond issirance and loan cosls 855,709 - 855,709 -
Tolal noncument assets 162,740,582 3,395,462 166,137,044 -
Tolal assets 196,956,973 3,671,161 200,628,134 -
LIADILITIES
Current Liabililies
Accounts payable 1,288,012 29,393 1,317,405 -
Compensated absences 191,891 11,403 203,294 -
Uncamed revenue 1,021,667 . 1,021,667 .
Due 1o general fund - 128,239 128,239 .
Due o component unil 350,600 - 350,600 -
Current portion of loans payable 89,102 163,196 252,298 .
Current maturities of long-lerm debt,
payable from restricied assets 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 .
Conslruction coniracts payable 22375 - 22375 -
Cument portion of post closure care cost - 333,130 333,180 -
Accrued interes! payable 197,127 32 201,059 -
Customers’ deposits, payable from restricted assels 2463287 . 2,463,287 -
Tolal curzent liabililies 8,623,461 665,243 9,292 804
Long:Term Liabililies, ned of current partion
Due lo component unit 5,360,000 - 3,360,000 -
Revenue bonds payable 44,072,085 - 44,072,085 -
Loans payable 619,669 929,656 1,569,325 -
Coempensaled ebsences 90,302 - o0,302 -
Post closure care cosls - 2,980,122 2,930,122 -
Total leng-1em lrabilities 50,162,056 3,909,718 54,071,834
Total liabilities $8,785,517 4,579,121 63,364,638 -
NET ASSETS (Deflcli}
Invesied in capital aasets, nes of relaled debt 108,383,048 2,303,610 110,692,658 -
Restricted for:
Debt Service 7,285,566 . 7,285,566 .
Capilal Projecis 13,474,659 B 13,474,659 -
Benefits and Claims - - - -
Unrestricled {deficit) 5,022,133 (3,211,570) 5,810,613 -
TOTAL NET ASSETS (Defici) $ 138,317,456 3 (507,960) $ 137,263,496 13 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of ihis s . 22



Paulding County, Georgia
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the year ended June 30, 2011

Buslness-type Activitles Enterprise Funds Govenmental
Major Fund Activilies
Water and Non-Major Internal Service
Sewer Enterprise Funds Tofal Fund
Operating revenues:
Charges for services $ 22225730 $ - $ 22225730
Penalties 688,713 - 688,713
Miscellaneous revenues 572,197 7,325 579,522
Landfill and recyeling fees - 734,956 734,956
Lease income - 333,315 333,315
Total operating revenues 23,486,640 1,075,596 24,562,236 -
Qperatlog expenses:
Salaries and wages 2,144,277 116,934 2,261 211 -
Fringe benefils 845,863 35,038 880,901 -
Qperating expenses 4,264,390 71540 4,979,821 -
Benelits and claims - - - -
Cost of water purchased 8,881,161 - 8,581,161 -
Depreciation 5,296,060 141,556 5,437,616 -
Total operaling expenses 21,431,751 1,008,959 22,440,710 -
QOperating income (toss) 2,054,889 66,637 2,121,526 -
Nonoperating revenues {(expenses):
Intergovemmental 117,267 - 117,267 -
Line maintenance lees 84,900 - 84,900 -
Interest income 81,911 67 81,978 -
Rent 14,531 - 14,531 -
Interest expense (2.193,598) (36,738) (2,250,336) -
Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) (1,894,989) (56,671) (1,951,660) -
Income before contributions and transfers 159,900 9,966 169,866
Capital conirlbutlons 719,695 - 719,695 -
Transfers In - 200,000 200,000 -
Change in net assets 879,595 209,966 1,089,561 -
Toial net assets (deficit)-beginning 137,291,861 (1,1172,926) 136,173,935
Total nel assets {deficit}-ending $ 138,171,456 §$ (507.960) § 137,263,496

The accompanying notes are an integral parf of this siafement.
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Paulding County, Georgia

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROFRIETARY FUNDS

For the year ended June 30, 2011

Cash flows {rom operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash payments for goods and services
Cash payments for employee services
and fange benefits
Cash payments for benefits and claims

Mert cash provided by {used in)
opesating activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Rental income
Transfecs in

Mek cash provided by noncapital
financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related
financing activitics:
Principal paid on loans
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Intergovernmental Revenues
Principal paid on revenue bonds
TInterest paid
Line maintenance fee
Contributed Capital

Net cash used in capital and
related financing activikies

Cash flows from invesiing activitics:
Sale of investments
Intecest received on investments

et cash provided by investing activities

Nct inceease (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1
Cash and cash equivalents, june 30
Reconciliabon to Statement of MNet Assets

Cash
Restricted cash

The accompenying notes are an integral pari of this statement.

Business fype Activities Governmental
Major Fund Activities
Water and Nonmajor Internal Service
Sewer Fund Enterprise Funds Total Fund
$ 23,356,461 3 1,037,584 24,394,049 % -
(14,755,145) (762,026) {15,517,171) -
(2,930,566) {154,360} (3,084,926) -
- - - (24,382)
5,670,750 121,202 5,791,952 (24,382)
14,551 - 14,531 -
- 200,000 200,000 -
14,531 200,600 214,531 -
(86,859 (155,588) (242,447 -
(4,776,511) - (4,776,511} -
117,267 - 117,267 -
(3,195,000 - {3,195,000) -
(2,251,023 (57,298) (2,308,321) -
B4,900 - 84,500 -
485,640 - 485,640 -
(9,621,586) (212,886) 9,834,472) -
6,168,660 - 6,168,660 -
81,911 67 81,978 -
6,250,571 67 6,250,638 -
2,314,266 108,383 2,422,649 (24,382)
£ 28146712  $ 112751 28259463  § 24,382
$ 30460978 § 221,134 w6822z 8 00 -
$ 8144966 % 221,134 8,366,100 § -
22316012 = 22316012 -
$ 30,460,978 § 221,14 30,682,112 $ -

24




Paulding County, Georgia
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Far the year ended June 30, 2011

Business iype Activilies Governmental
Major Fund Activities
Waitcr and Noomajor Imternal Service
Sewer Fund Entcrprise Funds Taotal Fund
Reconciliation of operating income to
net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities:
Operating income $ 2,054,882 $ 66,637 2,121,526 $ -
Adjustments to reconclle operating income
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activitics
Depreciation expense 5,296,060 141,556 5,437,616 -
{Increase) decrease in accounts teceivable 110,155 (38,008) 72,147 -
(Increase) in due from other funds (1,110,403) - (1,.110,403) -
TPecrease in inventones 52,506 52,506 -
Decreasc in customer deposits (13,280) - (13,280 -
Decrease in accounts payable
and construecton cost {551,697) (17,068) (568,765) (24.382)
Inceease (deceease) in compensated
absences payable 59,574 (2,388) 57,186 -
Decrease in due 1o other funds - {126,990) {126,990) -
Decrease in deferred revenue (227.054) - {221,059 -
Tncrease in post closure care cosks - 97,463 97,463
Total adjustments 1,615,861 54,565 1,670,426 (24.382)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating ackivitics $ 5,670,750 3 121,202 5,791,952 $ (24,382)
Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:
Contrbution of capital assets from developers % 234,055 $ - 234,055 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statemen.
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Paulding County, Georgia
STATEMENT OR FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2011
Agency Punds
Asgets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,853,685
Taxes receivable (nef) 3,638,304
§ 5491989
Liabilities
Due to othess $ 5,491,989

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 26




Paulding County, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2011

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of Paulding County, Georgia (the "County") have been prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("USGAAP") as applied
to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The
more significant of the County's accounting policies are described below.

1. Reporting Entity

The County is a political subdivision of the State of Georgia and is governed by an elected County
chairman and four clected commissioners. As required by generally accepted accounting principles,
these financial statements include the principal financial activities of the County. In accordance with
GASB requirements, the County considered potential component units for inclusion in its financial
reporting entity. The Paulding County Health Department Public Health Program, Paulding County
Industrial Building Authority, and Paulding County Airport Authority are included in the reporting
entity because the Paulding County Board of Commissioners directly appoints a majority of component
unit board members and a financial benefit/burden exists.

Discretely Presented Component Units are reported in separate columns in the government-wide
financial statements to emphasize they are legally separate from the Government.

Paulding County Health Department Public Health Program serves the citizens of Paulding County
and is governed by a board of appointed officials. Paulding County Board of Commissioners appoints
the officials to this board. Paulding County also makes monthly contributions to the health department
1o assist in operations. Paulding County Health Department operates on a July I through June 30 fiscal
year. A copy of the Paulding County Health Department Public Health Program’s financial statements
may be obtained by contacting the following address: Georgia Department of Human Resources
District 1 Unit 1, 1305 Redmond Road, Building 614, Rome, GA 30165-1391.

Paulding County Industrial Building Authority serves the citizens of Paulding County and is governed
by a board of appointed officials. Paulding County Board of Commissioners appoints the officials to
this board. Paulding County also makes monthly contributions to the Industrial Building Authority to
assist in operations. Paulding County Industrial Building Authority issued bonds to provide capital for
the construction of the Industrial Building Park and a Sewer plant to accommodate the park. Paulding
County Industrial Building Authority operates on a July 1 through June 30 fiscal year. A copy of the
Paulding County Industrial Building Authority’s financial statements may be obtained by contacting the
following address: Paulding County Chamber of Commerce, 730 Airport Parkway, Dallas, Georgia
30157.
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Paulding County, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2011
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-CONTINUED

1. Reporting Entity - Continued

Paulding County Airport Authority serves the citizens of Paulding County and is governed by a board
of appointed officials. Paulding County Board of Commissioners appoints the officials to this board.
Paulding County acts as the fiscal agent for the authority and provides personnel fo oversee the
construction and development of the airport. Paulding County Airport Authority operates on a July |
through June 30 fiscal year. A copy of the Paulding County Airport Authority’s financial statements
may be oblained by contacting the following address: Paulding County Airport Authority, 730 Airport
Parkway, Dallas, GA 30137.

2. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Assels and the Statement of
Activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the County. For the most part, the
effect of the inter-fund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities,
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The Statement of Activitics demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to cusiomers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefits from goods, services, or priviledges provided by a given function or
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meecting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds. Major individual governmental and
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

3. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial stafements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, Revenucs are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized
as revenue when all requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-CONTINUED

3. Measuretnent Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation- Continued

Governmental funds are used to account for the County’s general government activities.
Governmental fund types use the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting revenues are
recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they are “measurable and available”).
“Measurable® means the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” means
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
The County considers all revenues except intergovernmental revenues available if they are collected
within sixty days after yearend. Intergovernmental revenue is considered available if it is collected
within nine months after year end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general fong-term debt which is recognized when due, and
certain compensated absences and claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations
are expected fo be liquidated with expendable available financial resources.

Property taxes, alcoholic beverage taxes, licenses, interest and charges for services are susceptible to
accrual and have been recognized as revenue in the current period. Sales taxes collected by
merchants at year end on behalf of the County are also recognized as revenue.

Other receipts and taxes become measurable and available when cash is received by the County and
are recognized as revenue at that time.

Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been
incurred and all other grant requirements have been met.

The County reports the following major funds:

The general fund is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, cxcept those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The fire tax fund accounts for the operations of the fire department as well as capital purchases. A tax
levy is placed on all property within Paulding County. The tax levy is dedicated to the operational
and capital expenses of the fire department.

The SPLOST ITT capital projects fund accounts for resources which are used exclusively for roads,
public safety, and recreation.

The SPLOST IV capital projects fimd accounts for resources which are used exclusively for roads,
public safety, and recreation, economic development. The SPLOST IV fund replaces SPLOST 11T as
the term for SPLOST III expired in April 2011 and SPLOST IV began in 2011.

The capital projects fund accounts for the acquisition of capital assets or construction of major capital
projects not being financed by proprietary funds or SPLOST.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

3. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation — Continued

The County reports the following non-major fund types:

The special revenue funds account for revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditure for
specific purposes (not including major capital projects.)

The debt service fund accounts for the servicing of general long-term debt not being financed by
proprietary or nonexpendable trust funds.

Proprietary funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and use
the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. As provided by GASB, the County only applies
applicable FASB pronouncements issued through November 30, 1989 in accounting and reporting for
its enterprise fund operations if they do not conflict with GASB pronouncements. Proprictary funds
include the following fund types:

Enterprise funds are used to account for those operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business or where the County has decided that the determination of revenues
earned, costs incurred and/or net income is necessary for management accountability.

The water/sewer enterprise fund is the only major enterprise fund. This fund accounts for the
operations of the water distribution and the sewer collection systems as well as related
construction projects.

Internal service fund accounted for operations that provided services to other departments or
agencies of the County, or to other governments, on a cost reimbursement basis. The Internal
service fund is eliminated this year and the expense occurs in the appropriate fund.

Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the County in a trustee capacity or as an agent on behalf
of others. The County’s fiduciary funds are all agency funds.

The agency fund is custodial in nature and does not present results of operations or have a
measurement focus. Agency funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. These
funds are used to account for assets that the County holds for others in an agency capacity. The
County accounts for assets held with Constitutional Officers for property taxes, fines and fees paid
within the judicial system.
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3. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation — Continued

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this rule are payments-in lieu of taxes where the amounts are
reasonably equivalent in value to the interfund services provided and other charges between the
government’s water and sewer function and various other functions of the government. Elimination
of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various
functions concerned.

4. Budgets

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general, debt service, capital projects and special
revenue funds on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. All annual
appropriations lapse at fiscal year end, Project-length financial plans are adopted for capital projects
funds. Annual budgets for the enterprise funds are adopted for management control purposes.

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services.
Encumbrance accounting--under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation--is used
in the governmental funds.

The County utilizes the following schedule in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

a.Prior to June 1, the Chairman submits to the County Commission, a proposed operating budget
for the fiscal year commencing the following July. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them.

b. The Commission holds a public hearing on the budget, giving notice thereof at least ten days in
advance by publication in the official organ of Paulding County.

¢. The budget is then reviewed and adopted or amended by the Commission at the first regular
meeting in August of the year fo which it applies.

d.Departmental budgets so adopted require revision by formal action of the Commission if the
revision is greater than $50,000. No increase can be made to increase budgeted expenditures
without provision also being made for financing such an increase.

e.The legal level of budgetary control is at the department level.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

4. Budgets (continued)

During the year supplemental appropriations were made in the amount of $ 18,601,128, These
increases were primarily due to the general fund carryover expenses related to the flood and
additional SPLOST projects carried out during the year as approved, and the additional federal
funding of the East Hiram Parkway project. These expenditures were recorded in the general fund,
SPLOST 111 fund as well as the Capital projects fund. These additional appropriations were funded
by federal grants as well as fund balance.

5. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits, highly liquid investments such as
money market mutual funds and short-term investments with a maturity date within three months of
the date acquired by the County.

6. Investments

State statutes authorize the County to invest in obligations of the U.S. Government or its agencies and
corporations, obligations fully insured or guaranteed by the U.S. Government or its agencies, prime
bankers acceptances, the State of Georgia Local Government Investment Pool, obligations of other
political subdivisions of the State of Georgia, and repurchase agreements. Investments are recorded
at fair value.

7. Short-term/Long-term Interfund Receivables/Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as "due from other
funds" or "due to other funds" on the balance sheet.

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either interfund receivables/payables (i.e., the current
portion of interfund loans) or advances to/from other funds (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund
loans).

Noncurrent portions of long-term interfund loan receivables are reported as advances.

8. Inventory

In the governmental funds the cost of inventory is recorded as an expenditure when acquired
(purchase method) and is not inventoried at year end duc to immateriality. Enterprise funds'
inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in, first-out method and are
expensed when used (i.e. the consumption method).
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

9. Prepaid [tems

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the County's fiscal year end
are recorded as prepaid items using the consumption inethod by recording an asset for the prepaid
amount and reflecting the expenditure/expense in the year in which services are consumed.

10. Restricied Assets

Certain proceeds of Water/Sewer Revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their
repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by
applicable bond covenants. Any reimbursements fromn outside sources for these projects are restricted
accordingly.

Liabilities payable from these restricted assets include accrued interest payable on revenue bonds and
the current portions of revenue bonds payable.

The bond resolutions place restrictions on additional bond issues and contain certain accounting
provisions.

Customer deposits received by the Water and Sewer fund to initiate service are classified as a
restricted asset because funds will be returned to the customer when service is terminated,

11. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets, are reported in the
governmental activities in the government-wide staiement of net assefs and depreciated over their
estimated useful lives in the government-wide statement of activities. Capital assets are defined by
the County as assets with an individual cost of greaier than $5,000. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed, However, all additions to land
and buildings are capitalized. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation. No depreciation is taken on the donated assets in the same year of contribution.

Depreciation on donated assets and infrastructure begins in the year following donation. Major
outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially

extend lives are not capitalized. Interest costs incurred during construction of capital assets are not
capitalized in governmental activities.
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11. Captial Assets - Continued

Property, plant, equipment and infrastructure are depreciated using the straight line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

ASSETS YEARS
Buildings 30
Furniture and Fixtures 5-10
Equipment 5-10
Watet distribution system 40
Sewer system 40
Infrastructure 40

Infrastructore assets acquired prior to December 31, 1980 are included in the amounts reported.

12. Compensated Absences

On the government-wide statements, vacation and sick pay is accrued and reported as a liability for
the governmental activities similar to business-type activities. Vested or accumulated vacation and
sick leave is recorded in government-wide as well as proprietary as an expense and liability of those
funds as the benefits accrue to employees.

13. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-terin debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable statement of net assets.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

14, Fund Equity/Net Assets

The County implemented GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund
Type Definitions as of July 1, 2010. This new standard changed the overall definitions and
classifications of governmental fund balances.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund equity is classified as “fund balance™.
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14. Fund Equitv/Net Assets —Continued

Fund Balance — Generally, fund balance represents the difference between the assets and liabilities
under the current financial resources measurement focus of accounting. In the fund financial
statements, governmental funds report fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based
primarily on the extent to which the county is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for
which amounts in those funds can be spent.

Fund balances are classified as follows:

« Nonspendable — Fund balances are reported as nonspendable when amounts cannot be spent
because they arc cither (a) not in spendable form (i.e. items that are not expected to be
converted to cash) or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

o Restricted - Amounis constrained for a specific purpose by external parties, constitutional
provision or enabling legislation (same as restricted net assets)

o Committed — Fund balances are reported as committed when they can be used only for specific
purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the Board of Commissioners
through the adoption of a resolution. Only the Board of Commissioners may modify or
rescind the commitment,

e Assigned — Fund balances are reported as assigned when amounts arc constrained by the
County’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed.
Through the adoption of the fund balance policy the Board of Commissioners has authorized
the County’s Finance Director or the County Administrator to assign fund balances.

e Unassigned — Fund balances are reported as unassigned as the residual amount when the
balances do not meet any of the above criterion. The county reports positive unassigned fund
balance in all funds.

Flow Assumptions - When both restricted and unrestricted amounts of fund balance are available for
use for expenditures incurred, it is the County’s policy to use restricted amounts first and then
unrestricted amounts as they are needed. For unresiricted amounts of fund balance it is the County’s
policy to use fund balance in the following order:

¢ Committed

o Assigned

¢ Unassigned
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14. Fund Equity/Net Assets —Continued

Net Assets — Net assefs represent the difference between assets and liabilities in reporting which
utilizes the economic resources measurement focus. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of
related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net
assets are reported as resfricted using the same definition as used for restricted fund balance as
described in the section above. All other assets are reported as unrestricted.

The county applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both
restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

15. Bond Discounts/Premiuins/Tssuance Costs

On the government-wide statement of net assets and the proprietary fund statement of net assets, bond
premiums and discounts are netted against bonds payable, and bond issuance costs are reported as
deferred charges. On the government-wide and proprietary fund type statement of activities, bond
premiums and discounts and bond issuance cost are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the effective interest method.

At the governmental fund financial reporting level, bond premiums and discounts are reported as
other financing sources and uses, separately from the face amount of the bonds issued. Bond issuance
costs are reported as expenditures. '

16, Interfund Transactions

Interfund services provided and used are accounted for as revenues, cxpenditures or expenses.
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it
that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing
fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

All other interfund transactions, except interfund services provided and used, arc reported as
transfers.

17. Use of Estimates in the Preparation_of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.
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18. Operating/Non-operating Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in the proprictary funds ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the Water/Sewer system, landfill and DFACS
building are charges to customers for services and building lease. The water/sewer system also
recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new
customers to the system. Operating expenses for the enterprise funds include the cost of service,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting
this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

NOTE B - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Primary Government

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s deposits may not
be returned to it. The County reduces its exposure to custodial credit risk by requiring deposits to be
collateralized in accordance with state law, which requires uninsured deposits to be collateralized at
110%. As of June 30, 2011, all of the County’s deposits were insured and collateralized.

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the County’s
investment policy limits the investments with maturities greater than one year to 25%. As aneans of
limiting its exposure to credit risk of investments the County limits its investments to those types
disclosed in Note A (6) and by diversifying its investment portfolio. As a means of limiting its
exposure to custodial risk securities are held by an independent third party in the name of the County.

Discretely Presented Component Units

At year end, Paulding County Health Department’s cash deposits are insured by federal depository
insurance or collateralized with securities held by the Health Department’s agent in the Health
Department’s name,

At year end, Paulding County Industrial Building Authority’s carrying amount of bank deposits was
$9,801,816 and the bank balance was $9,829,356. The Authority’s bank balances are categorized to
indicate the level of risk assumed by the authority as follows:

1.) Insured or collateralized with securities held by the Authority

or by its agent in the Authority’s name, or FDIC $ 750,285

2.) Collateralized with securities held by pledging financial institution’s
Trust department or agent in the Authority’s name 9,079,071
$ 9,829,356
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Discretely Presented Component Units - Continued

At year end, Paulding County Airport Authority’s cash deposits arc insured by federal depository
insurance,

NOTE C - RECEIVABLES
Receivables as of year end consist of the following:

Primary Government

Major TFunds
Fire Capital
Genenal Tax SPLOST IIL SPLOST IV Projects
Taxes $ 2530417 $ 610,969 $ - $ 1,163,285 $ -
Intergovernmental 1,106,389 - 4,255,000 - 445,938
Other 236,923 - - - -
Gross receivables 3,813,729 610,969 4,255,000 1,163,285 445,938
Less: Allowance for
uncollectibles (697,136) {180,841) - - -
Net receivables $ 3,176,593 $ 430,128 § 4,255,000 $ 1,163,285 § 445938
Water and Non-Major Trust and
Sewer TFunds Apency
Taxes $ - $ 467,800 $5,390,081
Intetgovemmental - - -
Other 4,560,574 353,120 -
Gross receivables 4,560,574 820,929 5,390,081
Less: Allowance for
uncollectibles (1,055,363) {148,826) (1,751,777}
Net receivables $ 3,505,211 5 672,103 53,638,304

The County levies property taxes between August 1 and October 31 based on an assessment date of
January 1. The current year levy date was August 11. Property taxes are due by the later of November
15 or sixty days from the date the property tax bills are mailed at which time penalties and interest are
assessed.
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NOTE C —~ RECEIVABLES

Discretely Presented Component Units

As of June 30, 2011 the Component Units reported the following intergovernmental receivables:

Board of Health $141,301
Industrial Building Authority
Due from Airport Authority $3,857,928
Due from Paulding County 6,176,830
Due from City of Dallas 6,445,000
Total 1ndustrial Building Authority $16.479.758
Total Component Units $16,621,059

NOTE D — INTERFUND RECE1VABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS
Interfund receivable and payable balances as of year end are as follows:

Due to/from other funds:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

Water and Sewer General Fund $ 65,688
General Fund SPLOST IV 2,524
General Fund Non-major Govermmnental Fund 53,222
General Fund Non-major Enterprise Fund 128,239
Fire Tax General Fund 34,910
Capital Projects General Fund 852,814
SPLOST III General Fund 192,810

$  1.330,207

The purpose of interfund balances is to provide funds with sufficient funds for ongoing operations.
Interfund balances are expected to be repaid within one year.
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NOTE D - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

Transfers — Primary Government:

Fund Transfer In Transfer Out
General Fund - $ 200,000
Enterprise Funds:
Nonmajor
Solid Waste 200,000 -
200,000 $ 200,000

The General Fund contributes to the Solid Wasie Fund. This is a budgeted expenditure of the General
Fund and will continue until the revenues adequately meet the expenditures of the above mentioned

fund.

NOTE E - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2011 was as follows:

Baiance Balance
Juiy 1, June 30,
2010 Additions Delelions Transfers 2011
Governmental Activities
Capital assels not being depreciated
Land $ 50,994,882 5 99,000 b 146,280 - $ 50,947,602
Consiruciion in Progress 14,702,504 20,050,618 - {16,187,697) 18,565,425
Tolal capital assets not being deprecialed 65,697,386 20,149,618 146,280 (16,187,697} 69,513,027
Capital asseis being depreciated:
Buildings and Improvements 145,444 032 288,052 - 667,460 146,399,544
Equipment 34,350,050 1,832,463 235,758 232,627 36,179,382
Infrastruclure 220,613,322 - - 15,287,610 235,900,932
Total capital assets being depreciated 400,407,404 2,120,515 - 16,187,697 418,479,858
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 18,199,484 3,732,635 - - 21,932,119
Equipment 24,326,654 2,391,007 235,758 - 26,481,903
Infrastructure 44,016,590 5,500,144 - - 49,516,734
Total accumulated depreciation 86,542,728 11,623,786 235,758 - 97,930,756
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 313,864,676 (9,503,271) - - 320,549,102
Total governmental activilies capital
assels, net $ 379,562,062 $ 10,646,347 3 146,280 - $ 390,062,129
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NOTEE - CAPITAL ASSETS-CONTINUED

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2010 Additions Deletions Transfers 2011
Business-type activities:
Water/Sewer:
Land $ 1,412,012 $ 2,785 b - - $ 1,414,797
Consfruction in Progress 2,720,026 1,931,761 - (4,590,689) 61,098
Total capital assets not being depreciated 4,132,038 1,934,546 - (4,590,689) 1,475,895
Capital assets being depreclated:
Buildings 1,635,076 63,940 - - 1,699,016
Equipment 3,220,846 - 11,475 - 3,209,371
Waier disiribution sysfem 106,641,889 512,081 - 3,838,993 110,992,963
Sewer sysiem 86,357,300 2,500,000 - 751,696 89,608,996
Tolal capilal assels being depreciated 197,855,111 3,076,021 11,475 4,590,689 205,510,346
Less accunwlaied depreciation for:
Buildings 584,804 50,429 - - 635,233
Equipment 2,495,662 183,757 11,475 - 2,667,944
Water distribulion sysiem 27,992,562 2,774,220 - - 30,766,782
Sewer syslem 8,741,755 2,287,654 - - 11,031,409
Total accumulated depreciation 39,816,783 5,296,060 11,475 - 45,101,368
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 158,038,328 (2,220,039} - - 160,408,978
Water and sewer capilal assets, net $ 162,170,366 $  (285,493) $ - - $ 161,884,873
Other business-type activity programs:
Land kN 612,233 b - b3 - - $ 612,233
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 3,650477 - - - 3,650,477
Equipment 1,499,990 - - - 1,499,990
Total capital assels being depreciated 5,150,467 - - - 5,150,467
Less accunmulated depreciation for:
Buildings 917,145 77,862 - - 995,007
Equipment 1,307,537 63,694 - 1,371,231
Total accuimulated depreciation 2,224,682 141,556 - - 2,366,238
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 2,925,785 (141,556) - - 2,784,229
Other enterprise funds capital assels, net 3,538,018 (141,556) - - 3,396,462
Busingcss-type activities capital assets, net $ 165,708,384 $  {427,019) $ - 5 - $165,281,335
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Depreciation expense on assets used by governmental activities was charged to functions
as follows:
Governmental Funds:

General government $ 2,437,160
Judicial 91,104
Public safety 1,532,211
Public works 5,966,312
Culture and recreation 530,019
Health and welfare 45,458
Housing and development 1,021,522

Total depreciation expense-governmental funds $ 11,623,736

Business-type Funds

Water/Sewer $ 5,296,060
Landfill 63,694
DFCS Facility 77.862

Total depreciation expense - business-fype activities $ 5437616

Discretely Presented Component Units

Activity for the Industrial Building Authority for the year ended June 30, 2010, is as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2010 Additions Deletions 2011
Business Type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 1,517,002 3 464,072 3 - $1,981,074
Construction in progress 134,709 368.996 - 503,705
Total capital assets not being
Depreciated 1,651,711 833,068 - 2,484,779
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings - 542,993 - 542,993
Infrastructure 122,660 217,745 - 340,405
Equipment and vehicles 21,882 - - 21.882
Total capital assets being
Depreciated 144,542 760,738 - 905,280
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings - 3,394 - 3,394
Infrastructure 1,533 8,510 - 10,043
Equipment and vehicles 19,282 1.857 - 21,139
Total accumulated depreciation 20,815 13,761 34,576
Total capital assets being
Depreciated, net 123,727 746,977 - 870,704

Total Industrial Building Authority capital
Assets, net $1,775.438 $1,580.045 $ - K] 483
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Discretely Presented Component Units-continued
Activity for the Airport Authority for the year ended June 30, 2011, is as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2010 Additions Deletions 2011
Business Type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $3,863,253 $ b $ 3,863,253

(217,745) 155,676

Construction in progress 312,405 61.016
Total capital assets not being
Depreciated 4,175,658 61,016 (217,745} 4,018,929
Capital assels being depreciated
Buildings 286,982 - - 286,982
Infrastructure 49,522 - - 49,522
Equipment and vehicles - 1351 - 1,351
Total capital assets being
Depreciated 336,504 1,351 - 337,855
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings 3,587 7,175 - 10,762
Infrastructure 1,238 1,238 - 2,476
Equipment and vehicles - 68 - 68
Total accumulated depreciation 4,825 8.481 - 13,306
Total capilal assets being
Depreciated, net 331,679 (7.130) - 324,549
Total Airport Authority capital
Assels, net $4.507,337 $ 53,886 $ (217,745) $ 4343478

NOTE F - LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE CARE COST

State and federal laws and regulations require the County to place a final cover on its landfill when
closed and perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site for thirty years
afier closure. Governmental accounting standards require the County to estimate and accrue for future
costs associated with the closure and post-closure care of the landfill. In addition to operating expenses
related to current activities of the landfill, an expense provision and related liability are recognized
based on the future closure and post-closure care costs that will be incurred near or after the date the
landfill no longer accepts waste. The recognition of these landfill closure and post-closure care costs is
based on the amount of the landfill capacity used during the year. The recorded liability for landfill
closure and post-closure care costs at year end totaled $3,313,302. This amount is based on the total
estimated cost of closure and post-closure costs multiplied by management's estimate of the percentage
of landfill capacity used at year end (94%). The estimated total current cost of the landfill closure and
post-closure care (approximately $3,524,789) is based on the amount that would be paid if all
equipment, facilities, and services required to close, monitor, and maintain the landfill were acquired as
of June 30, 2011. However, the actual cost of closure and post-closure care may be higher due to
inflation, changes in technology, or changes in landfill laws and regulations. As of June 30, 2011 it is
estimated that the remaining life of the landfill is eight years.
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NOTE G - LONG-TERM DEBT

1. Changes in Long-Term Debt
The following is a summary of changes in general long-term debt during the year.

Balance Batance Due within
June 30, 2010 Additions Payments June 30, 2011 1 year
Governmental Activities:
Bonds Payable
2003 Refunding &
Improvements $ 1,390,000 $ - $ (685,000) $ 705000 $ 705,000
Series 2007 general obligation
bonds- Conservation Project 13,395,000 - (790,000) 12,605,000 825,000
Series 2007 general obligation
bonds-Gov't Complex
Project 61,995,000 - (920,000) 61,075,000 950,000
Series 2009 Refunding 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 65,000
Unamortized Bond Premium 3,356,703 - (534,348) 2,822,355 -
Less deferred amounts
On refunding (61,874) - 15,198 (46,676} -
Total Bonds Payable 85,074,829 - (2,914,150) 82,160,679 2,545,000
Compensalted absences 2,903,115 2,479,312 (2,140,428) 3,241,999 2,334,239
Governmental activity
Long-term liabilities $ 87,977,944 $2,479312 $(5,054,578) $85,402,678 $ 4,879,239

For the govetrnmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by the General Fund.
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NOTE G - LONG-TERM DEBT — CONTINUED

1. Changes in Long-Term Debt - Continued

Balance Balance Due within
June 30,
June 30, 2010 Additions Payments 2011 1 year
Business-type activities:
Bonds Payable

1993 Water Revenue Bonds  $ 4,790,000 8 - $(1,095,000) $3,695,000 $1,160,000

2004 Water Revenue Bonds 10,870,000 - (630,000) 10,240,000 660,000

2009 Water Revenue Bonds 15,040,000 - (715,000) 14,325,000 730,000

2009A Water Revenue Bond: 17,755,000 - (420,000) 17,335,000 450,000

Unamortized Bond

Premium 2,075,245 - (253,926) 1,821,319 -

Deferred Bond

Refunding Cost (392,247) - 48,013 (344,234) -

Total Bonds Payable 50,137,998 - (3,065,913) 47,072,085 3,000,000
Loans Payable

1993 GEFA loan 155,630 - (86,859) 68,771 68,771

2010 GEFA loan 628,459 3,541 - 660,000 20,331
2001 Installment note 1,248,440 - (155,588) 1,092,852 163,196
Tntergovernmenial payable,

Industrial Building Authority 6,045,000 - {335,000) 5,710,000 350,000
Compensated Absences 236,409 210,577 (153,390} 293,596 203,294
Landfill Closure/Post Closure 3,215,839 97,463 - 3,313,302 333,180

Business-type aclivities
Long-term liabilities _ $ 61,667,775 $ 339,581 $(3.796,750) $58,210,606 $4,138,772
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NOTE G - LONG-TERM DEBT — CONTINUED

2. General Obligation Bonds

General obligations bonds at year end consisted of the following:

Series 2003 general obligation refunding and improvement bonds (original amount - $5,100,000) due
in annual principal maturities of $570,000 to $705,000 through August 2011; interest at 2.94%,
payable August 1 and February 1. The 2003 bond issue refunded the 1993 bond issue.

Series 2007 general obligation bonds (original amount - $14,885,000) due in principal maturities of
$730,000 to $1,315,000 through 2023; interest at 4.00% payable August 1 and February 1. The 2007
Conservation issue provided financing for acquiring land fo conserve open space.

Series 2007 general obligation bonds (original amount - $65,000,000) due in principal maturities of
$895,000 to $4,885,000 through 2032; interest at 4.00% to 5.00% payable August 1 and Febrvary 1.
The 2007 Courthouse-Government Complex issue provided financing for construction of the
courthouse and administration building.

Series 2009 general obligation bonds (original amount - $5,000,000) due in principal maturities of
$65,000 to $ 1,290,000 through 2015; interest at 2.25% to 3.00% payable August 1 and February 1.
The 2009 bond issue refunded the 1999 bond issue. The 1999 bond issue was completely defeased in
FY 2010, therefore the balance is $0 at June 30, 2011.
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NOTE G - LONG-TERM DEBT — CONTINUED

2. General Obligation Bonds - Continued

Future maturities of principal and interest on general obligation bonds at June 30, 2011 are as follows:

Year ending June 30,

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032

Principal

$ 2,545,000
$2,970,000
$ 3,065,000
$ 3,180,000
$ 3,295,000
$ 3,410,000
$ 3,580,000
$ 3,755,000
$ 3,945,000
$ 4,130,000
$ 4,330,000
$ 4,500,000
$ 3,345,000
$ 3,510,000
$ 3,685,000
$ 3,870,000
$ 4,055,000
$ 4,250,000
$ 4,430,000
$ 4,650,000
$ 4,885,000

$ 79,385,000
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Interest

$ 3,597,852
$ 3,501,638
$ 3,400,876
$ 3,285,663
$3,174,401
$3,060,113
$2,891,012
$2,716,188
$ 2,529,838
$2,337.413
$2,142,063
$ 1,967,863
$1,782,313
$ 1,615,063
$ 1,439,563
$1,255,313
$ 1,071,488
$ 878,875
$ 698,250
$ 476,750
$ 244250

$ 44,066,778

Total

$ 6,142,852
$ 6,471,638
$ 6,465,876
$ 6,465,663
$ 6,469,401
$6,470,113
$ 6,471,012
$ 6,471,188
$ 6,474,838
$ 6,467,413
$ 6,472,063
$ 6,467,863
$5,127,313
$ 5,125,063
$ 5,124,563
$ 5,125,313
$ 5,126,488
$ 5,128,875
$ 5,128,250
$ 5,126,750
$ 5,129,250

$123,451,778
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NOTE G - LONG-TERM DEBT — CONTINUED

3, Water Revenue Bonds

Outstanding revenue bonds at June 30, 2011, collateralized by all revenues of the County's water and
sewer system, consist of the following:

Series 1993 A & B revenue bonds (original amount - $16,910,000) due in

principal maturities of $560,000 to $1,035,000 through 2013; interest at

3.50% to 6.00% payable June 1 and December 1. The 1993 issue provided

financing for water and sewer infrastructure. $ 3,695,000

Series 2004 revenue bonds (original amount - $ 13,675,000) due in

principal maturities of $ 475,000 to $ 1,375,000 through 2022; interest

at 3.00% to 5.00% payable June 1 and December 1, The 2004 issue

provided financing for water and sewer infrastructure. 10,240,000

Series 2009 revenue bonds (original amount - $ 15,740,000) due in

principal maturities of $ 700,000 to $ 4,920,000 through 2023; interest

at 2.00% to 5.00% payable June 1 and December 1. The 2009 issue

provided financing for water and sewer infrastructure. 14,325,000

Series 2009A revenue bonds (original amount - $ 17,755,000) due in
principal maturities of $ 420,000 to $ 2,150,000 through 2021; interest
at 2.00% to 5.00% payable June 1 and December 1. The 2009A issue
refunded the 1999 bond issue. The 1999 bond issue was completely

defeased in FY 2010, therefore the balance is $0 at June 30, 2011, 17,335,000
Gross bonds payable 45,595,000
Less: Unamortized deferred loss on refunding (344,234)
Unamortized bond premium 1,821,319
Net bonds payable $ 47,072,085
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NOTE G - LONG-TERM DEBT — CONTINUED

3. Water Revenue Bonds - Continued

The following is a summary of Water Revenue bond debt service to maturity as of year end:

Year ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2012 3,000,000 1,883,644 4,883,644
2013 3,130,000 1,753,856 4,883,856
2014 3,260,000 1,618,994 4,878,994
2015 3,405,000 1,494,081 4,899,081
2016 3,520,000 1,381,575 4,501,575
2017 3,635,000 1,241,493 4,876,493
2018 3,810,000 1,090,132 4,900,132
2019 3,950,000 940,300 4,890,300
2020 4,110,000 765,378 4,875,378
2021 4,315,000 563,425 4,878,425
2022 4,450,000 342,050 4,882,050
2023 4,920,000 114,275 5,034,275

$ 45,595,000 $13,189.203 $58,784,203

The County has pledged future water customer revenues, net of specified operating expenscs, to
repay $45.595 million in water revenue bonds issued from 1993 to 2009. Proceeds from the
bonds provided financing for water and sewer infrastructure. The bonds are payable from
water customer net revenues and are payable through 2023. Annual principal and interest
payments on the bonds are expected fo require approximately less than 20 percent of operating
revenues. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $58,784,203.
Principal and interest paid for the current year and total customer revenues were $4,863,119
and $23,486,640, respectively.
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4, Loans Payable

Outstanding loans of the Water and Sewer Fund and Non-major Enterprise Funds at year end,
consist of the following:

1993 loan (original amount - $1,075,462) payable in quarterly installments
of $23,644, including interest at 6.25%, through January 1,2012,
provide financing for expansion of water and sewer infrastructure. $ 68,771

Intergovernmental payable to Industrial Building Authority (original amount —
$ 6,370,000) due in semiannual installments of $335,000 to $500,000 through
2023; interest at 3.00% to 4.30% payable June 1 and December 1. This payable
Funds the 2003 Series B & C issued to consfruct a sewer treatment plant 5,710,000

2001 Instaliment sale note agreement (original amount - $2,523,500)
payable in monthly installments of $20,087, including interest at
3.90%, through June 3, 2015, provide financing for a building leased
to the Department of Family Children Services. 1,092,852

2010 Georgia Environmental Facilities Authority loan (original amount-
$660,000) payable in monthly installments of $3,660, including interest
At 3.0%, through August 1, 2031, provide financing for water reuse lines.

__660.,000
$7.531,623
The following is a summary of future annual maturities of the loans payable:
Year ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total

2012 602,298 297,751 900,049
2013 556,527 278,298 834,825
2014 580,823 256,322 837,145
2015 600,566 232,309 833,375
2016 625,744 208,009 833,753
2017 633,741 181,773 815,514
2018-2023 3.931.924 693,570 4.625.494
$7.531,623 2,148,532 $ 9,680,155
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5. Industrial Building Authority Component Unit Long — Term Debt

On December 1, 2003 the Authority issued $10,995,000 of Revenue Bonds. The bonds were
issued in three separate series for various purposes. Series A (taxable) of the debt in the
amount of $3,085,000 was issued for the purchase of land for an industrial park and is payable
over 15 years at an interest rate not to exceed 5.0%. Series B (tax-exempt) of the debt in the
amount of $4,800,000 was issued for the construction of a wastewater treatment facility project
and is payable over 18 years with a maximum interest rate of 4.3%. Series C (tax-exempt) of
the debt in the amount of $3,110,000 were also issued for the construction of a wastewater
treatment facility and is payable over 18 years with a maximum inferest rate of 4.0%. The
funds from the 2003B and 2003C Series have been transferred to Paulding County, Georgia to
cover the cost of the Upper Sweet Water Sewer Plant. Ownership of the facility is now with
Paulding County, Georgia. The County and the Authority entered into an intergovernmental
contract dated December 1, 2003 whereby the County is obligated to make principal and
interest payments on the 2003B and 2003C bonds as they mature. As a result a receivable is
recorded for the Industrial Building Authority to correspond to the payable to the Industrial
Building Authority for the County. The debt service requirement for this agreement mirror the
bonds.

On August 1, 2010, the Authority issued $6,445,000 of Revenue Bonds (federally Taxable
Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds) (City of Dallas Project). The Series 2010
Taxable Revenue Bonds were issued to provide funds to pay the cost of making renovations,
additions, extensions and expansions to a portion of the City of Dallas, Georgia Water and
Sewerage System. The City of Dallas and the Authority have entered into an
Intergovernmental Contract dated August 1, 2010, whereby the City is obligated to make
payments to the Authority sufficient in time and amount to enable the Authority to pay the
principal and interest on the Bonds as they mature.

On May 1, 2011, the Authority issued $7,900,000 of Revenue Bonds. The Bonds were issued
in two separate series for various purposes. The Series 2011A Revenue Tax-Exempt Bonds in
the amount of $1,100,000 were issued for the purpose of construction of Airport and Airport
Technology Park Water Tank and Fire Protection. The Series 2011B Taxable Revenue Bonds
in the amount of $6,800,000 were issued for the purposes of construction of PJC Hanger with
an approximate cost of $1,200,000 and the construction of a Film Studio with an approximate
cost of $5,000,000 with remaining $600,000 to cover the cost of issuing the Bonds.
Operationat revenue is anticipated from these projects. The net income from this project will
be applied toward this bond debt. However, Paulding County, Georgia (County) and the
Authority have entered into an Intergovernmental Contract dated May 1, 2011, whereby the
County is obligated to make payments to the Authority sufficient in time and amounts to enable
the Authority to pay the principal and interest on the 201 1A and 2011B Revenue Bonds as they
mature.
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5. Industrial Building Authority Component Unit Long — Term Debt - Continued

Balance Balance Duc within
June 3¢, 2010 Additions Payments June 30, 2011 1 year
Industrial Building
Authority
Revenue Bonds Payable
2003 Revenue Bonds $ 8,475,000 b - $  (460,000) $ 8,015,000 $ 480,000
2010 Revenue Bonds 6,445,000 - 6,445,000 -
2011 Revenue Bonds - 7,900,000 - 7,900,000 -
Unamortized Bond
Premium 57,596 - (6,400) 51,196 -
Unamortized Bond
Discount (88,331) (88,331) -
Total Bonds Payable $ 8,532,596 $ 14,256,669 $ 466,400 $ 22,322,865 $ 480,000

The total annual debt service requirements to maturity for all debts outstanding are as follows:

Year ending
June 30

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017-2021
2022-2026
2027-2031

Principal

$ 480,000
790,000
955,000

1,020,000
1,085,000
6,230,000
6,685,000
5,115,000

$ 22360,000

Interest

$ 1,041,220
1,023,212
998,920
966,536
929,884
3,960,063
2,343,054
839,556

$12,102.445
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Total

$ 1,521,220
1,813,212
1,953,920
1,986,536
2,014,884

10,190,063
9,028,054
5,954,556

$ 34,462,445
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NOTE H - OPERATING LEASE AGREEMENT

The County leases several buildings to third parties under operating lease agreements. One
lease may be renewed annually through June 30, 2017, One lease may be rencwed or extended
in three successive periods of five years. Fiscal year 2011 includes minimum operating lease
agreements totaling $333,315.

NOTE I - CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year ended June 30, 2011, capital contributions from customers, developers, State
Department of Transportation and the Federal Airport Administration totaled $ 719,695
consisting of the following items:

Contributed From Purpose Amount
Developers Contributed Water Lines Infrastructure $234,055
Customers Tap Fees Collected 485,640

$ 719,695

NOTE I - RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts;, theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters, The
County participates in the Association County Commissionets of Georgia (ACCG) Workers’
Compensation Self-Insurance Fund and the ACCG Interlocal Risk Management Agency
(IRMA) public entity risk pool which operate as common risk management and insurance
programs. ACCG establishes and administers these public entity risk pools to prevent or lessen
the incidence and severity of casualty and property losses and workers’ compensation claims
incurred by the County. The ACCG pools are obligated to provide for the cost of claims and
related interest incurred by the County along with the cost of investigating, negotiating and
defending such claims. The County pays an insurance premium to the ACCG pools for
coverage against these risks of loss. Settled claims have not exceeded insurance coverage in
any of the last three years. Therc have been no significant reductions of insurance coverage
from the prior year.
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NOTE K - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation

Various claims and legal proceedings are pending against the County secking monetary
damages and other relief. The amount of liability from all claims and actions cannot be
determined with certainty, but in the opinion of management and legal counsel, the ultimate
liability from all pending legal proceedings, asserted legal claims, and known potential legal
claims which are probable of assertion should not materially affect the financial position of the
County.

Construction Contracts

As of June 30, 2011, the County's remaining obligation on uncompleted construction contracts
totaled approximately $ 12,426,407 consisting of Water and Sewer contracts, $27,375 and
Department of Transportation contracts, 12,399,032.

NOTE L - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Plan Description

The County contributes to the Association of County Commissioners of Georgia ("ACCG")
Paulding County Defined Benefit Plan (the "Plan"), an agent multiple-employer public
employee retirement system that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for
participating counties in Georgia. Actuarial information included in this footnote is as of
January 1, 2011 (the date of the most recent actuarial valuation date).

All full-time County employees are eligible to participate in the Plan after completing three
years of service. Benefits vest after five years of service. Participants become eligible to retire
at age 65, with 3 years of participation in the Plan. Upon eligibility to retire, participants are
entitled to an annual benefit in the amount of 1% of average compensation up to $6,600 plus
1.5% of average compensation in excess of $6,600 plus $36 for each year of service (up to 35
years) payable as a life annuity, Compensation is averaged over the five-year period
immediately prior to retirement or termination. The Plan also provides benefits in the event of
death or disability, These benefit provisions were established by an adoption agreement
executed by the County Board of Commissioners and may be amended by a similar adoption.

County employees are not required to contribute to the Plan. The County contributes the entire
cost of the Plan, using the projected unit credit actuarial method.

ACCG issues a publicly available actuarial report that includes required supplementary
information for the Plan, That report may be obtained by calling (770) 563-9368.
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NOTE L - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Funding Policy

Contributions to the Plan are authorized and may be amended by the Board of Commissioners.
ACCG Plan funding policy provides for the making of required actuarially determined periodic
contributions under the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. This cost method
determines plan liabilities consistent with the standardized measure of pension obligation
described by Statement No. 25 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. In addition,
the cost method determines contributions at rates that, for individual employees, increase
gradually as an employee gets older, and enables sufficient assets to accumulate for such time
as benefits become due.

Any excess of the actuarial accrued liability ("AAL") as of January 1, 1988 over the Plan's
assets as of that date is amortized over closed periods on a two-tier basis as follows: a) if the
value of benefits accumulated as of January 1, 1988 (based on current salary history, not
projected) exceeds the Plan's assets, that excess is amortized over ten years, beginning January
1, 1988; plus b) the additional unfunded AAL as of January 1, 1988 is amortized over 30 years,
beginning January 1, 1988.

For January 1, 1989, and later valuvations, three additional amortization amounts may apply: c)
the amortization of the change in AAL attributable fo Plan amendments over 20 years,
beginning on the effective date of the amendment; plus d) the amortization of the cumulative
difference between the actual calculated unfunded AAL as of the valuation date and the
expected unfunded AAL (based on the actuarial assumptions used for funding purposes) over
15 years; plus €) the amortization of the change in unfunded AAL resulting from changes in
actuarial assumptions over 30 years.

Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include (a) a rate of return on the
investment of present and future assets of 7.75% per year compounded annually, (b} projected
salary increases of 5.50% (3.0% inflation and 2.5% merit) per year compounded annually, and
(c) no post-retirement benefit increases, (d) active participants of 593. The actuarial value of
the Plan’s assets was determined using the market value of investments. The unfunded
actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level dollar amount on a closed basis. The
remaining amortization period as of January 1, 2011 was 10 years.
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Annual Pension Cosk

The following is the schedule of funding progress of the plan as of the most recent valuation
date, January 1, 2011:

Actuarial value of assets $19,014,520
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 24,382,524
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 5,368,004
Funded ratio 78.0%
Covered Payroll 22,630,176
UAAL as a percentage of

Covered payroll 23.7%

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following
the noies to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liabilities for benefits.

The County’s actvarially required contribution, pension cost, and decrease in net pension
asset for the year ended June 30, 2011, were computed as follows:

Schedule of Employer Contributions:

Annual Actual Percentage Net Pension

Year ended Pension County of APC Obligation
June 30, Cost (APC) Contribution ~ Contributed (Asset)
2011 $2,033,143 $ 2,009,221 99%  §(414,114)
2010 1,977,229 1,974,840 99% (438,036)
2009 1,703,500 1,765,801 104% (440,425)

Derivation of Net Pension Asset:

2011
Net Pension Assect as of Beginning of Prior Year $ (438,036)
Annual Pension Cost for Prior Year 2,033,143
Actual contributions to Plan for Prior Year 2,009,221
Decrease in Net Pension Asset 23,922
Net Asset as of End of Year §(414.114)
Derivation of Annual Pension ¢ost:
Annual Required Contribution $2,030,774
Interest on Net Pension Obligation (33,856)
Amortization of Net Pension Obligation 36.225
Anmual Pension Cost $2.033,143
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Contributions totaling $2,009,221 were paid in accordance with actuarially determined
coniribution requirements determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of January 1, 2011
for the 2011 Plan Year. The contributions represented 23.70% of the covered payroll for 2011.
Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of events far info the future, and actvarially determined amounts are subject to
continual revision as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective. Calculations are based on the
substantive plan in effect as of January 1, 2011.

NOTE M - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The County adopted the Paulding County Supplemental Retirement Plan on June 1, 2004. This plan is
adininistered by AIG VALIC. The 401 (a) is a defined contribution plan that covers substantially all
employees.

The County will match any contribution made by an employce fo the deferred compensation plan on a 1
to 1 basis up to a maximum contribution by the County of 1% of employees annual salary.
Contributions are calculated and made on a biweekly payroll basis. The Board of Commissioners
establishes required contribution and matching percentages.

Employees become eligible for the plan on the date of hire provided they are full-time and work a
minimum of 30 hours per week. Actual participation in the plan begins with the first payroll following
their date of hire. Participants are fully vested in the plan after five years of service.

The County has made the following contributions to the plan:

County Contributions Employee Contributions

2010 $ 267,232 $ 711,563
2011 ' 272,354 725,507
539,586 $1,437,070
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NOTE N - JOINT VENTURE

Under Georgia law, the County, in conjunction with other cities and counties in the fifteen
county northwest Georgia area, is a member of the Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
(RC). Membership in an RC is required by the Official Code of Georgia Annotated (OCGA)
Section 50-8-34 which provides for the organizational structure of the RC’s in Georgia. The
RC Council membership includes the chief elected official of each county, the largest
municipality of the county and one non-public member from the county. OCGA 50-8-39.1
provides that the member governments are liable for any debts or obligations of the RC. During
the year, the County paid $123,692 in dues to the NWGRC. The financial requirements of the
County related to the NWGRC are limited to the amount of its annual dues. Separate financial
statements may be obtained by writing to Northwest Georgia Regional Commission, P. O. Box
1798, Rome, Georgia 30162-1798.

NOTE O - FUND EQUITY

Nonspendable — The following fund balances are non-spendable because they are allocated to:
General Fund
Prepaid Items $ 369,532
Restricted — The following balances are restricted for:
Major Funds:
General Fund —
used fo account for grants funds received to complete
flood repair $ 351,117
Fire Tax Fund—
used to account for operation of the Fire Dept. $ 6,027,608
SPLOST IH -
used to account for capital projects financed with SPLOST ~ $20,868,478
SPLOST IV — :
used to account for capital projects financed with SPLOST  § 2,993,092
Capital Projects Fund —
used to account for the bond proceeds issued for reservoir
and courthouse construction projects $ 1,490,633
Non-major funds:
Law Library Fund —
used to account for operations of the Law Library $ 105934
Drug Confiscation Account —
Used to account for resources confiscated and expensed

In the fight against drugs $ 27,838
Victim Witness Fund — accounts for the operational ¢xpenses
used in the Victim Witness program $ 89,629

Clerk’s Technology — accounts for resources used to improve
technology in the Clerk of Court’s office

o]

383,017
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Paulding County, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2011
NOTE O — FUND EQUITY (CONTINUED)

Non-major funds (continued):

Emergency 911 Fund —
Used to account for the operations of the E-911 center $ 1,253,949
Jail Fund — accounts for the inmate supplies and capital
purchases of the Jail $ 719,537

Supplemental Juvenile — accounts for outside sources

utilized within the court system for treatment and evaluation $ 159,000
Drug Use Treatment — accounts for fines collected to be used

In drug treatment and prevention education $ 56,527

Debt Service Fund — Used to account for the principal and interest
payment of General long term debt $ 1,313,563

Committed — The following fund balance are committed to:
Sheriff Commissary — used to account for the receipts and
Purchases inmates incur while incarcerated $ 166,972

Assigned — The following fund balances are assigned to:
General Fund:
Encumbrances- As of June 30, 2011, the county encumbered
Amounts they intend to honor in the subsequent year
Encumbrance detail

Reservoir $457,011
DOT Infrastructure Maintenance $919,233
Sheriff training supplies & Equipment$ 71,221

Other supplies $228.011 $ 1,675,476
Landfill cost of closure $ 1,425,000
2012 Budget $ 546,641
Capital Projects Fund — used to construct or purchase
Capital assets $ 733,069

Unassigned — The County’s policy is to maintain an adequate General fund unassigned fund
balance to provide liquidity in the event of an economic downfurn or natural disaster. Through
resolution, the Board of Commissioners has adopted a financial standard to maintain a General
Fund minimum unassigned fund balance of 25 percent of budgeted expenditures
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Paulding County, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30,2011
NOTE P - DEFICIT FUND EQUITY
The Solid Waste Fund has a deficit fund equity of $ 2,423,528 as of June 30, 2011. The deficit

occurred due to the recognition of the landfill closure and post-closure care liability as described
in Note F. Annually, a contribution is made from the General Fund fo reduce this deficit.

Expenditures exceeded appropriations at the department level as follows:

Major Funds
General Fund
District Attorney $10,178
Coroner 485
Utility Coordinator 35,690
Public Safety - general appropriations 862
Health and Welfare — grants 57,978
Health and Welfare — general appropriations 153
SPLOST III Fund
Marshal 25,573
SPLOST 1V Fund
Housing and Development 2,524
Capital Projects Fund
Community Development 565,330
Non-Major funds
Victims Witness 45,268
Law Library 44,927

These over expendifures were funded by greater than anticipated revenues in the case of the
general fund, law library, SPLOST IV fund and by fund balance in the SPLOST III fund,
capital projects fund and victim witness fund.

NOTE Q - RESTATEMENT

The County made a prior period adjustment to include a correction to the deferred revenue
2010 and therefore resulting in an overstatement to prior year revenue in the following amounts:
General Fund, $498,513; Fire Tax, $112,323; Debt Service, $ 89,135.

A prior period adjustment was made in the Governmental Activities on the Statement of
Activities in the amount of $1,208,271. This accounts for a grant that was awarded in 2010, but
not received until 2011,
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PAULDING COUNTY, GA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

The information presented below on the annual actuarial vatuations as of December 31 of cach year.

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Actuarial value of assets 19,014,520 16,846,581 14,720,347 13,763,518 11,772,193 9,852,994 8,349,900
Actuaral acerued lability
(AAL) 24,382,524 22,579,553 19,962,472 17,191,188 15,471,763 13,776,583 12,046,648
Unfunded acruanial accrued
Lability (UAAL) 5368,004 5,732,972 5242,125 3,121,670 3,692,570 3,923,589 3,696,748
Funded ratio 18.0% 14.6% 13.7% 78.1% 76.1% 71.5% 69.3%
Covered Payroll 22,630,176 22,250,062 21,106,471 18,912,254 17,654,200 15,275,066 13,413,124
UAAL as a percentage of
covered payroll 23.7% 25.8% 24.8% 19.7% 21.0% 25.1% 27.6%
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Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

Revenucs
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitores
Investment income
Contrbutions and donations

Miscellaneous

T'otal Revenucs

Expendifures
Current

General government
Judicial
Public salety
Public works
Healeh and welface
Culwire and recreation
Housing and development

Total Bxpenditures

Excess (deliciency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of capital assets

Transfers out

"T'otal other Anancing sovrecs (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Pund balance, beginning, before restatement
Restateent
Fund balaace, after restatement

Fund balance, end of year

Year caded June 30, 201l
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Budgeted Amounts Variances
Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)

H 43,658,400 % 44,590,000 $ 45,036,966 $ 446,966
286,000 350,000 396,477 46,477
217,000 1,627,000 2,502,167 965,767

4,921,500 4,782,500 8,167,506 385,006
1,560,000 1,365,000 1,497 847 132,847
25,000 15,000 53,539 38,539
- 391,630 289,455 {102,175)
265,000 304,000 312,028 8,028
50,932,900 53,425,130 55,346,585 1,921,455
11,437,985 12,256,088 11,256,783 999,305
4,893,800 4,923,587 4,674,766 248,821
19,392,680 19,045,798 18,370,660 675,138
8,908,440 12,133,262 10,695,703 1,437,559
1,544,400 1,832,470 1,856,781 (24311)
2,976,766 3,043,959 2,859,945 184,014
2,072,490 2,188,955 2,133,986 54,969
51,226,561 55,424,119 51,848,624 3,575,495
(293,661) (1,998,989) 3,497,961 5,496,950
- - 35,163 35,163
{200,000) (200,000) (200,000) -
{200 000) (200,000) (164,837) 35,163
$ {493,661) § (2198989 3,333,124 $ 5,532,113
19,893,122
(498,513)
19,394,609




Paulding County, Georgia
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FIRE TAX FUND

Year ended June 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts Yariances
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenucs
Taxes $ 6438900 % 6,700,000 § 7,020,324 s 320,324
Investment Income - - 21,298 21,298
Intergovernmental Revenue - - 76,371 76,371
Contobutions and Donations - - 8,200 8,200
Miscellaneous - - 2,019 2,019
Total Revenues 6,438,900 6,700,000 7,128.212 428,212
Expenditures
Public Safety
Fire
Personncl Services 6,252,600 6,592.811 6,511,116 81,095
Other Services and Charges 786,130 802,325 786,794 15,531
Capital Outlay 52,700 104,864 104,847 17
Total expenditures 7,091,430 7,500,000 7,403,357 96,643
Net change in fund balance $ (652,530) $ (800,000} (275,145) $ 524,855
Fund balance, beginning of year _ 6,415,076
Restatement (412,323)
Fund balance, beginning after restatement 6,302,753
Fund balance, end of year $ 6,027 608
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Paulding County, Georgia
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2011
NOTE A - ACTUARIAL VALUATION
The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as

part of the actuarial valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the
latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date: January 1, 2011
Actuarial cost method: Projected unit credit
Asset valuation method: Market value
Amortization method: Level dollar
Remaining amortization period: 10

The amortization period for this plan is closed.

Actuarial Assumptions Utilized:

Investment rate of return: 7.75%
Projected salary increases: 5.5%
Includes inflation at 3.0%
Cost of living adjustment None




Paulding County, Georgia
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2011
NOTE B — EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS BY
INDIVIDUAL FUND

Expenditures exceeded appropriations at the department level as follows:

Major Funds
General Fund
District Attorney $10,178
Coroner 485
Utility Coordinator 35,690
Public Safety — general appropriations 862
Health and Welfare — grants 57,978
Health and Welfare — general appropriations 153
SPLOST III Fund
Marshal 25,573
SPLOST IV Fund
Housing and Development 2,524
Capital Projects Fund
Community Development 565,830
Non-Major funds
Victims Witness 45,268
Law Library 44,927

These over expenditures were funded by greater than anticipated revenues in the case of the
general fund, law library, SPLOST IV fund and by fund balance in the SPLOST III fund,
capital projects fund and victim wiiness fund.

66




General Fund




SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovemmental
Charges for Seonces
Fines and Foefeitures
Tnvestment Income
Contributions and Donations

Miscellaneous

Total Revenucs

Expendilures
Currenf
Gencral Government
Adminsitraton
Legistative
Pemonnel Services
Operating Expenditures

Executive
Pesonnel Services
Operating Expenditures

Elections
Personnel Seevices
Openaiing Expenditures

Finance
Personnel Services
Operating Expendituces

Information Technology
Personnel Services
Opcrating Expenditares
Capital Quilay

Human Resources
Personnel Services
Operating Expenditures

Paulding County, Georgia

GENERAL FUND
Year ended June 30, 2011
Budgeted Amounts Variances
Positive
Chriginal Pinal Actual (Negative)
$ 43,658,400 $ 44,590,000 H 45,006,966 $ 446,966
286,000 350,000 396,477 46,477
217,000 1,621,000 2,592,767 965,767
4,921,500 4,782,500 5,167,506 385,006
1,560,000 1,365,000 1,497,847 132,847
25,000 15,600 53,539 38,539
- 391,630 289,455 {102,475)
265000 e 304000 . 32098 o 8028
50,932,900 53,425,130 55,346,585 1,921,455
496,400 496,400 483,068 13,332
127,000 127,000 130015 (3.015)
623,400 623,400 613,083 10317
197,800 197,800 197,783 17
14,700 14,700 11,336 3,364
212,500 212,500 209,119 3,381
195,000 312,700 309,288 3412
222,100 104,420 76,158 28,262
417,100 417,120 385,446 31,674
486,700 501,700 492,854 8,846
27,800 22,800 18,919 3,881
514,500 524,500 511,773 12,727
508,300 508,300 503,442 4,858
578,575 582,655 547,104 35,551
- 48,934 48,199 715
1,086,875 1,139,889 1,098,745 41,144
280,600 285,100 278,647 6,453
27,000 22,500 19,329 3,171
307,600 307,600 297976 9,624
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Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
Year ended June 30, 2011
Budgeted Amounts Varances
Positive
Original Final Aciual {Negative)
General Govemment - continued
Government Faalities
Personnel Services 406,300 46,300 380,113 26,187
Opeating Expenditures 824,600 847,610 854,734 7.124)
Capital Cutlay 30,000 30,000 - 30,000
1,264,900 1,283,410 1,234,847 49,063
Tax assessments and Collections
Yax assessors:
Personnel Services 1,254,300 1,254,300 1,160,010 94,290
Operating Expenditures 244,510 244,510 152,599 91,911
1,498,810 1,498,810 1,392,600 186,201
Tax Commissioner
Persanncl Services 190,600 790,600 154,130 35,870
Openating Expenditures 199,700 199,700 172,623 21077
Capital Outhay 7,000 7,000 - 7,000
997,300 997,300 921,353 69,947
Total Tax Assessment and Collections 2,496,110 2,496,110 2,239,962 256,148
General Appropriations
Other Expenditures 4,515,000 5,251,059 4,665,832 585,227
‘Total General Governmeny 11,437,985 12,256,088 11,256,783 999,305
Judicial
Superior Count
Personnel Services 484 200 484,200 421,113 62427
Operating Expendilurcs 378,000 338 456 290,007 48,359
862,200 B22,656 711,870 110,786
Cletk of Superior Court
Personnc Services 1,048,300 1,048,300 983,505 64,7195
Operating Expenditures 72,900 72,900 53,296 19,604
1,121,200 1,121,200 1,036,801 84,399
Probate Court
Pcrsonnel Services 604,800 604,800 602,599 2,201
Openating Bxpenditures 91,700 1,700 82077 9,623
696,500 696,500 684,676 11,824
Magistrate Court
Personnel Services 386,700 389,200 387,338 1,862
Operating Rependitures 16,400 16,400 13,657 2,743
403,100 405,600 440,995 4,605
District Attomey
Personnel Services 572,900 611,000 627,546 (16,546)
Operating Expenditures 174,000 169,231 164,176 5,055
Capital Outlay - 6,500 5,187 1,313
146,900 786,731 796,909 {10,178)
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Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES TN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
Year ended June 30, 2011
Budgeted Amounts Variances
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Judicial - continued
Juvenile Court
Yersonnel Services 316,500 316,500 279,551 36,49
Operating Expenditures 268,500 268,500 279,084 (10,584)
585 0430 585,000 558,635 26,365
Public Defendee
Personnel Services 172,800 199,800 204,729 (4,929)
Openting Expenditures 306,100 306,100 280,151 25,949
478,900 505,900 484,850 21,020
Tokal Judicial 4,893,800 4,923,587 4,674,766 248,821
Public Safety
Coronet
Personnel Services 44,100 44,100 44,557 {457y
Operating Expenditures 21,500 21,500 21,528 (28)
65,600 65,600 66,085 (485)
Shenfl
Personnel Services 11,165,800 10,987,800 10,582,794 405,006
Openating Expenditures 1,837,580 1,772,304 1,650,037 122,267
Capital Cutlay 72,500 132,215 127,984 4,231
13,075,880 12,892,319 12,360,815 531,504
Jad
Personnel Services 3,335,300 3335300 3,263,195 12,105
Openating Bxpenditures 1,816,400 1,640,079 1,738,978 (98,859)
Capital Qutlay 5,000 45,000 7,710 37,290
5,156,700 5,020,379 5,009,883 10,496
Marshal
Tersonnel Services 358,400 308,400 237,660 70,740
Operating Expenditaces 4,900 49,900 38,958 10,942
423,300 358 300 276,618 81,682
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Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REYENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

Year ended June 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts Variances
Positive
Original Final Actual {tNegative}
Animal Control
Tersonnel Services 526,200 526,200 469,493 56,707
Operating Expenditures 97,000 140,000 143,904 (3.904)
Capikal Crutfay 5,000 - - -
628,200 666,200 613,357 52,803
Genenl Appropriatons
Operating Expenditures 43,000 43,000 43,862 {862)
‘Total Public Salety 19,392,650 19,045,798 18,370,660 675,138
Public Works
Roads and Bridges
Personnel Senvices 2,725,200 2,725,200 2,692,270 32,930
Openting Expenditurcs 4,073,020 6,759,221 5,721,006 1,038,215
Capiral Quilay 31,000 308,165 117,710 190,455
6,835,220 9,192,586 8,530,986 1,261,600
Stopmwater
Personnel Services 380,500 380,500 359,543 20,957
Operating Expendituces 80,770 86,206 76,047 10,159
Capital Qutlay 24,000 119,000 098,969 20,031
485,270 585,706 534,559 51,147
Utlity Coordinator
Pesonnel Seovices 85,800 85,800 87,057 (1,257
Operating Expenditures 807,200 807,200 841,633 (34,433)
893,000 893,000 928,690 (35,690)
Maintenance Shop
Personnel Seovices 541,900 541,500 524,537 17,363
Openating Expenditures 12,600 144,620 12,150 132,470
554,500 686,520 536,687 149,833
Recycling
Personncl Services 114,400 114,400 107,530 6,870
Openating Expendituces 26,050 26,050 22,251 3,799
Capital Outlay - 35,0600 35000
140,450 175,450 164,781 10,669
Total Public Works 8,508,440 12,133,262 10,695,703 1,437,559
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Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

Year ended June 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts Variances
Posilive
Original Pinal Actual (Negative)
Health and Wellare
Mental Health Grant 50,000 50,000 50,000 .
General Health Grant 326,000 326,000 323,265 2,135
Genera Welfare Grant 28,000 18,000 16,528 1472
Paulding Vospital Authority 500,000 800,000 862,185 (62,185)
904,000 1,194,000 1,251,918 (52,978)
Senior Citizens Centet
Persanne] Sevvices 182,700 182,700 177,205 5,495
Operating Expenditures 84,500 74,300 62,445 11,855
Capital Cutlay 15,000 . - R
282,200 257,000 239,650 17,350
Senior Citizens Yan
Personnel Services 113,300 113,800 86,556 27,244
Operating Expenditures 11,500 17,500 31,444 (13,949
131,300 131,300 118,000 13,300
Bus Service
Personnel Services 124,500 124,500 119,760 4,740
Operating Expenditures 47,400 62,670 64,240 (1,570)
171,900 187,170 184,000 3,170
General Appropriations
Operating Expenditures 55,000 53,000 63,153 (153)
Total Health and Welfarc 1,544,400 1,832,470 1,856,781 (24,311)
Culture and Recreation
Libracy
Personne] Services 736,600 136,600 698,687 37,913
Operating Expenditutes 122,500 122,780 107,782 14,998
Capital Cudday 100,000 161,500 161,309 19
959,100 1,020,880 967,778 53,102
Rececation
Personnel Services 1,220,500 1,220,500 1,090,640 129,860
Openating Lxpendituces 762,466 167,879 769,295 (1,416)
Capital Cutlay 24,000 24,000 22,589 1,411
2,006,966 2,012,379 1,882,524 129,855
Gcneral Approphahons
Operating Expenditures 10,700 10,700 9,643 1,057
Total Culture and Recreation 2,976,766 3,043,959 2,859,945 184,014
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

Paulding County, Georgia

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

Housing and Development
County Extension Secvice
Persannel Services
Operating Expendituces

Community Development
Personnel Services
Opcmting Expenditures
Capital Ouday

Airport
Personnel Sexvices
Operating Bxpendituces

General Appropriations
Opeeating Expendituscs
Total Housing and Development

Toral Espendinures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses);
Operating fransfers ouk
Sale of captial asscts

‘Total other financing sources {uses)
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning, before reslatement
Restatement

Fund balance, beginning, alter restatement
Fund balance, end of year
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GENERAL FUND
Year ended June 30, 2011
Budgeted Amounis Vaniances
Positive
Originai Final Actual (Negative)
31,100 31,100 30,558 542
17,200 17,200 15,660 1,540
48,300 48,300 46,218 2,082
934,990 934,990 885,145 49,845
188,800 188,809 212,544 (23,735}
5.000 5,000 4,617 383
1,128,790 1,128,792 1,102,306 26,493
170,200 170,200 173,304 (3,109
95,200 156,656 130,214 26442
265,400 326,856 303,518 23,338
630,000 685,000 681,944 3,056
2,072,490 2,188,955 2,133,986 54,960
51,226,561 55,424,119 51,848,624 3,575,495
(293,661) (1,998,989) 3,497,961 5,496,950
(200,000) (200,000) (200,000) -
- - 35,163 35,163
(200,000) (200,000) {164,837 35,163
{493,661) $ (2,198,989) 3,333,124 5532113
19,893,122
(498,513)
19,394,609




Paulding County, Georgia
SCHEDULRE OF REYENUES AND EXPENDITURES FAND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
SPLOSF 1L CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Year ended June 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts Varances
Posilive
Original Rinal Actual (Negalive)
Revenues
‘Taxes $ 11,500,000 3 10,000,000 3 9,985,666 3 {14,334)
Intergovemmental - - 4,522,400 4,522,400
Investment Income - 60,000 85,495 25495
Cantnburions - - 298,980 298,080
Total Revenues 11,500,000 10,060,000 14,892,541 4,832,541
Expenditures
Public Safety
Sheaff
Capilal Cuitlay 500,000 1,000,000 724,171 275,829
500,000 1,000,000 724,171 275,829
Fire
Capiral Outtay 1,500,000 1,230,440 546,174 684,266
1,500,000 1,230,440 546,174 684,266
Marshal
Capital Qutlay - - 25,573 (25,573}
- - 25,573 (25,573}
Emesgency Telephone System
Capital Outlay 200,000 200,000 183,847 16,153
200,000 200,000 183,847 16,153
Total Public Safety 2,200,000 2,430,440 1,479,765 950,675
Public Works
TRoads, Highways and Bridges
Capital Outlay 7,000,000 10,218,200 8,707,695 1,420,505
Total Public Works 7,000,000 10,218,200 8,797,695 1,420,505
Culiure and Recreation
Recreation
Other Scevices and Charges - 10,000 6,362 3,638
Capital Cutlay 8,150,000 8,641,360 7,107,286 1,534,074
Total Culture and Recreation 8,150,000 8,651,360 7,113,648 1,537,712
Intergovernmental - 1,000,000 998,566 1,434
Toral expenditurcs 17,350,000 22,300,000 18,389,674 300,326
Net changes in fund balance b {5,850,000) $  {12,240000) (3.497,133) § 842,867
Pund balance, beginning of year 24365611
Pund batance, end of year $ 20,868,478

73




Paulding County, Georgia
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
SPLOST IV CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Year ended June 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts Variances
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Taxes $ 2,000,000 $ 2,000,000 § 3,436,864 $ 1,436,804
Total Revenues 2,000,000 2,000,000 3,436,864 1,436,864
Expenditures
Public Safety
Fire
Capital Cutlay 369,560 369,560 - 369,560
369,560 369,560 - 369,560
Total Public Safery 369,560 369,560 - 369,560
Public Works
Roads, Highways and Bridges
Capital Outlay 781,800 781,800 - 181,800
Total Public Works 781,800 181,800 - 781,800
Culture and Recreation
Recreation
Capital Outlay 348,640 348,640 - 348,640
T'otal Culture and Recreation 348,640 348,640 - 348,640
Housing and Development
Economic Development
Capital Outlay - - 2,524 (2,524)
Total Housing and Development - - 2,524 (2,524}
Intergovernmental 500,000 500,000 441,248 58,752
Total expenditures 2,000,000 2,000,000 443,772 1,556,228
Net change in fund balance 3 - $ - 2,993,092 § 2993092
Fund balance, beginning of year -
Fund balance, end of year $ 2993092
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Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
Year ended June 30, 2011
Budgeted Amounts Variances
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negativc)
Revenues
Ineegovernmenial $ - $ 6,000,000 $  5671,577 $ (328,423)
Investment Income - - 4571 4571
Total Revenues - 6,000,000 5,676,148 (323,852)
Expenditures
General Government
Capital Qutlay - 100,000 62,397 37,603
Tokal General Government - 100,000 62,397 37,603
Public Works
Roads, Highways and Bridges
Capital Outlay - 6,000,000 4,325,160 1,674,840
Total Public Works - 6,000,000 4,325,160 1,674,840
Culture and Recreation
Libraries
Capiial Outlay 200,000 350,000 347,618 2,382
Total Culture and Recreation 200,000 350,000 347,618 2,382
Housing and Development
Commuonity Development
Payment to Indusirial Building Authority - - 466,830 (466,330)
Capital Qutlay - - 99,000 (99,000)
- - 565,830 (565,830)
Alrport
Capital Qutlay 1,000,000 1,000,000 583,841 416,159
Total Housing and Development 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,149,671 (149,671)
Total cxpenditures 1,200,000 7,450,000 5,884,846 1,565,154
Net change in fund balance $ (1,200,000 $  (1,450,000) (208,698) § 1,244,302
Fund batance, beginning of year 2,432,400
Pund balance, end of year $ 2223702
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Paulding County, Georgia
Non-major Governmental Funds

June 30, 2011

Special Revenue Funds

The special revenue funds account for revenue sources that are legally restricted to
expenditure for specific purposes.

The Vietim Witness Fund accounts for the five percent additional fee placed on fines and
used for victim witness services.

The Emergency 911 Fund accounts for the fee collection and the operation of the
Emergency 911 system within the County.

The Jail Fund accounts for a portion of fine money received from the court system and
expended on inmate supplies and capital purchases.

The Supplemental Juvenile Fund accounts for a portion of fines within the juvenile court
and expended on outside services within the juvenile court system.

The Drug Use Treatment Fund accounts for money received from the state. This fee is
assessed every time a deed is purchased on-line. This money is expended on fechnology in
the clerk of superior court’s office.

The Clerk’s Technology Fund accounts for money received from the state. This fee is
assessed every time a deed is purchased on-line. This money is expended on technology in
the clerk of superior court’s office.

The Law Library Fund provides for the operation and maintenance of the County’s law
library.

The Sheriff Commissary Fund is used to account for the receipts and purchases inmates
incur while they are incarcerated.

The Drug Confiscation Fund is used to account for the resources public safety officers
confiscate during a drug charge and expensed in the fight against drugs.

Debt Service Fund

The debt service fund accounts for the servicing of general long-term debt not being financed
by proprietary funds.




Paulding County, Georgia
All Nonmajor Governmental Funds

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 2011

Total T'otal
Nonmajor Nonmajor
Special Decht Governmental
Revenue Service Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,694,076 § 1,322,987 % 4,017,063
Reccivables, net
Property taxes - 318,974 318,914
Other 299,564 - 209,564
Total assets $ 2993640 $ 1,641,961 $ 4,635,601
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 26,602 § 2,000 § 28,602
Dhue to other funds 4,635 48,587 53,222
Decferred revenue - 277,811 277,811
Total liabilides 31,237 328,398 359,635
Fund Balances
Restricted fund balance 2,795,431 1,313,563 4,108,994
Committed fuad balance 166,972 - 166,972
Total fund balances 2,962,403 1,313,563 4,215,966
Total liabilities
and fund balances 3 2,993,640 § 1,641,961 § 4,635,601
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Paulding County, Georgia
All Nonmajor Governmental Funds
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN.FUND BALANCES

For 1he year ended June 30, 2011

Fotal MNonmajor
Nonmajor Debt Governmenlal
Special Revenue Service Funds
Revenues
Taxes $ - § 6,423,127 $ 6,423,127
Chaiges for Services 2,554,299 - 2,554,209
Fines and TFoefcitures 418,554 - 418,554
investment Income 8,770 8,452 17,222
Total Revenues 2,981,623 6,431,579 9,413,202
Expendiwres
Cureent
Judiciat 333,295 - 333,995
Public Safery 2,513,600 - 2,513,600
Debt Service
Principal rerirement - 2,395,000 2,395,000
Entceest and lees - 3,693,609 3,693,609
‘T'otal expenditures 2,847,595 6,088,609 8,936,204
et change in fund balances 134,028 342,970 476,998
Pund balances, beginning, before restatement 2828375 1,059,728 3,888,103
Resiatement - (89,125) (89,135)
PFund balances, after restatement 2,962,403 970,593 3,798,968
Fuad balances, end of year $ 2962,403 $ 1,313,563 $ 4,275,966
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Paulding County, Georgia
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
YVICTIM WITNESS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Year ended June 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts Variances
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Fines and Forfeitures & 20,000 3 150,000 $ 127,428 $ (22,572)
Total Revenucs 20,000 150,000 127,428 (22,572)
Expenditures
Judicial
District Attorncy
Victim Witncss Propram 20,600 150,000 195,268 {45,268)
Total Judicial 20,000 150,000 195,268 (45,268)
Total expendituzes 20,000 150,000 195,268 (45,268)
Net change in fund balance 3 - $ - (67.840) & (67,840)
Fund balance, heginning of year 157,469
Fund balance, end of year $ 89,629
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Paulding County, Georgia
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
E-911 SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Year ended June 30, 2011

Budgcted Amounts Variances
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Charges for services $ 1,800,000 $ 1,800,000 $ 2,009,711 3 209,711
Investment income - - 4,703 4,703
Total Revenues 1,800,000 1,800,000 2,014,414 214,414
Expenditures
Public safety
Emergency telcphone system
Personnel services 1,423,200 1,407,200 1,347,874 59,326
Other services and charges 529,300 545,300 545,269 (69)
Tatal expenditures 1,952,500 1,952,500 1,893,243 59,257
Net change in fund balance $  (152,500) $  (152,500) 121,71 $ 273,611
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,132,778
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,253,949
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Paulding County, Geotgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
JAIL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Year ended June 30, 2011
Budgcted Amounts Yariances
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Fincs and Forfeitutes % 95,000 $ 120,000 $ 230,573 3 116,573
Investment Income - - 2,331 2,331
Total Revenues 95,000 120,000 232,904 112,904
Expenditures
Public Safety
Shenff
Other Services and Charges - 60,000 43,031 16,969
Capital Ouilay 95,000 190,000 144,101 45,809
‘Total expenditures 95,000 230,000 187,132 62,868
Met change in fund balance $ - $ {130,000) 45,772 § 175,772
Fund balance, beginning of year 673,765
Fund balance, end of year 3 719,537
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Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
SUPPLEMENTAL JUVENILE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Year ended June 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts Variances
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Fines and Forfeitures $ 10,000 $ 40,000 $ 32870 § (7,130}
Investment Income - - 486 486
T'otal Revenues 10,000 40,000 33,356 (6,644)
Expenditures
Public Safery
Sherff
Drug abuse progeam 10,000 40,000 37,215 2,785
Total Public Safety 10,000 40,000 37,215 2,185
Total expenditures 10,000 40,000 37,215 2,785
Net change in fund balance $ - 3 - (3,859 $ (3.859)
Fund balance, beginning of year 162,859
$ 159,000

Fund balance, end of year
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Paulding County, Georgia
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
DRUG USE TREATMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Yecar ended June 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts Variances
Positive
Original Final Acmal (Nepgative)
Revenues
Charges for Services $ 30,000 $ 175,000 $ 131,588 $ (43,412)
Investment Income - - 163 163
T'atal Reveaues 30,000 175,000 131,751 (43,249
Expenditures
Public Safety
Sherdff
Drug abuse program 30,000 175,000 161,666 13,334
Total Public Safety 30,000 175,000 161,666 13,334
Total expenditures 30,000 175,000 161,666 13,334
Net change in fund balance $ - $ - (29915 % (29,915)
Fund balance, beginning of year 86,442
Fund balance, end of year $ 56,527
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Paulding County, Georgia
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
CLERK'S TECHNOLOGY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Year ended June 30, 2011

Budgeted Amonnts Variances
Positive
Original Pinal Actual (Negative)
Revenue
Charges for Seevices $ 15,000 $ 80,000 $ 108,146  $ 28,146
Inyestment Income - - 1,087 1,087
Total Revenucs 15,000 80,000 109,233 29,233
Expenditures
Judicial
Clerk's Technology 15,000 80,000 54,117 25,883
Total Judicial 15,000 80,000 54,117 25,883
Total expenditures 15,000 80,000 54,117 25,883
Net change in fund balance $ - $ - 55,116 $ 55,116
Fund balance, beginning of year 327,901
Fund balance, end of ycar § 383,017
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Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
LAY LIBRARY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Year ended June 30, 2011
Budgeted Amounts Variances
Positive
Original Final Actal {INegative)
Revenues
Charges far Services $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 57432 § 47,432
Total Reveaues 10,000 10,000 57,432 47,432
Expenditures
Judicial
Cousl's - other charpes 10,000 10,000 54,927 (44,927)
Total Judicial 10,000 10,000 54,927 (44,927)
Total expenditures 10,000 10,000 54,927 {44,927y
Net change in fuad balance $ - $ - 2,505 $ 2,505
Fund halance, beginning of year 103,429
Fund balance, end of year $ 105,934
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Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
SHERIFF COMMISSARY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Year ended June 30, 2011
Budgeted Amounts Variances
Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
Revenues
Charges for Sexvices $ 20,000 $ 350,000 $ 247422 3 {102,578}
Total Revenucs 20,000 350,000 247 422 {102,578}
Expenditures
Public Safeiy
Shedff
Commissary 20,000 350,000 229 850 120,150
"Total Public Safety 20,000 350,000 229,850 120,150
Total expenditurcs 20,000 350,000 229,850 120,150
Net change in fund balance $ - $ - 17,572 $ 17,572
Fund balance, beginning of year 149,400
Fund balance, end of year $ 166,972
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Paulding County, Geotgia
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
DRUG CONFISCATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Year ended June 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts Variances
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Fines and Forfeitures $ 10,000 $ 50,000 $ 27683 § (22,317)
Total Revenues 10,000 50,000 27,683 (22317)
Expenditures
Judicial
District Attorney .
Victim Witness Program 5,000 25,000 29,683 {4.683)
T'otal Judicial 5,000 25,000 29,683 (4,683)
Public Safety
Sheriff
Community Service program 5,000 25,000 4,494 20,506
Total Public Safery 5,000 25,000 4,494 20,506
Total expenditures 10,000 50,000 34,177 15,823
Net change in fund balance $ - $ - (6,494) 3 {6,494)
Fund balance, beginning of year 34,332
Fund balance, end of year $ 27,838
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Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 1N FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

DEBT SERVICE FUND
Year ended June 30, 2011
Budgeted Amounts Variances
Positive
Qriginal Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Taxes § 6,000,000 & 6,200,000 $ 6423127 $ 223,127
Investment Income - - 8,452 8,452
Total Revenues 6,000,000 6,200,000 6,431,579 231,579
Expenditures
Debt Senvice:
Principal retirement 2,400,000 2,395,000 2,395,000 -
Interest and fees 3,800,000 3,805,600 3,693,609 111,391
6,200,000 6,200,000 6,088,609 111,391
T'otal expenditurcs 6,200,000 6,200,000 6,088,609 111,391
Net change in fund balance $ (200,000) $ - 342970 $ 342,970
PFund balance, beginning before restatcment 1,059,728
Restatement (89,135)
Fund balance, after restatement 970,593
Pund balance, end of year % 1,313,563
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Paulding County, Georgia

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2011
Solid DFACS
Waste Building Tatals
ASSETS
Current Assels
Cash $ - 221,134 PAM
Accounis receivable, net 53,565 - 53,565
Total curreat assets 53,565 221,134 274,699
Moncurcent assets
Capital assers
Land 612,233 - 612,233
Plant and equiprment 2,035,972 3,114,495 5,150,467
Less: accumulated depreciation (1,646,014) (720,224) (2,366,238)
Toml noncurrent assels 1,002,191 2,394,271 3,396,462
Toral assets 1,055,756 2,615,405 3,671,161
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 29,393 - 29,393
Accrued interest - 3,932 3,932
Compensated Absences 11,403 - 11,403
Due 1o g(:neral fund 125,186 3,053 128,239
Cucrent portion of loans payable - 163,196 163,196
Current portion of post closure care costs 333,180 - 333,i80
‘I'okal current liabilities 499,162 170,181 669,343
Long-Term Liabilities, net of current portion
Loans payable - 929,656 929,656
Post closure care costs 2,980,122 - 2.980,122
Total long-teem liabilities 2,980,122 929,656 3,909,178
‘T'otal liabilities 3,479,284 1,099,837 4,579,121
NET ASSE'TS (DEFICIT)
Tovested in capital assets, nct of refated debr 1,002,191 1,301,419 2,303,610
Unrestricted (3,425,719 214,149 {3,211,570)
TOTAL NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) $ {2,423,528) 1,515,568 {907,960)
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Paulding County, Georgia
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the year ended June 30, 2011

Solid DPRACS
Waste Building Total
Operating revenues:
Miscellaneous revenues 7325 - 7325
Landfill and recycling fees 734,956 - 134,956
Leasc income - 333,315 333315
Total operating revenucs 742,281 333,315 1,075,596
Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages 116,934 - 116,934
Fringe benefits 35,038 - 35,038
Opcrating expenses 704,689 10,742 715,431
Depreciation 63,694 71,862 141,556
Total operating expenses 920,355 38,604 1,008,959
Opcraing income (loss) (178,074) 244,711 66,637
Nonoperating revennes (expenses):
Interesk income - 67 67
Interest expense - (56,738) (56,738)
T'oral nonoperating revenoe (expenses) - {56,671) (56,671)
Transfer in 200,000 - 230,000
Change in net assets 21,926 188,040 209,966
Total net assets-beginning (2,445,459 1,527,528 (1,117,926)
Total net assets-ending (2,423,528) 1,515,568 (007,560)
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Paulding County, Georgia

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash fAows from operating activities:
Cash received from customer
Cash payments for goods and scrvices
Cash payments for employee services
and fringe benefits

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

Cash ftows from non-capital financing zciivities:
“TI'ransfers in

Net cash provided by noncapital
financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related
financing activites:
Principal paid on loans
Tnicrest paid

Net cash used in capital
and refated financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Intecest received on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash

equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30

Reconciliation of operating income (Joss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating
aclivities:

Operating income {oss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (Joss) to

net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation expense
(Increase) in accounts receivable
(Decrease) in accounts payable
{Decrease) in compensated absences payable
{Decrease) in due o other funds
Increase in post closuse care costs

Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activites

For the year ended June 30, 2011

Solid DFACS
Waste Building Total

- 704,273 § 333,315 3 1,037,588
(149,913 {12,113) (762,026)
{154,360) - (154,360)

(200,000% 321,202 121,202

200,000 - 200,000

200,000 - 200,000

- {155,588) (155,508)

- (57,298) (57,298)

- (212 886) {212 886)

- 6 67

- 67 67

- 108,383 108,383

3 = s 112351 5 112,751
3 - 3 221,134 H 221,134
3 (178,074) 3 244,11 g 66,637
63,604 71,862 141,556
(38,008) . (38,008)
(17,068) - (17.068)
(2.388) . (2.388)
(125,619) (1,371) {126,990)

97,463 - 97,463

(21,926) 76,491 54,565

3 (200,0{{)) § 321,202 $ 121,202
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Fiduciary Funds
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Paulding County, Georgia

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Agency Funds

For the year ending June 30, 2011

June 30, June 30,
2010 Additions Deductions Eliminations 2011
Tax Commissioner
ASSETS
Cash $ 1072995 § 115872497 $ 116247095 § . 241,185 $ 457,212
Taxes Receivable (Net) 3,408,179 97,811,105 97,580,980 - 3,638,304
Total Assets $ 4,481,174 $ 213,683,602 $ 213,828,075 $ 241,185 8 4,095,516
LIABILITIES
Duc to Others $ 4.481,174 $ 213,683,002 $ 213,828,075 $ 241,185 $ 4,095,516
Total Liabilities $ 4481174 $ 213683602 5 213,828075  § 241,185  $ 4095516
Clerk of Superior Court
ASSETS
Cash $ 1,263,789 $ 7174116 8 7,113,749 $ 172,405 % 1,151,751
Total Assets S 1263789  § 7174416 § 1113799 % 172,405 $ 1,151,751
LIABILITTES
Due to Others $ 1263789 % 7174116 S 7113749 S 172405 § 1,151,751
Total Liabilities $ 1,263,789 $ 1,174,116 $ 7,113,749 $ 172,405 $ 1,151,751
Sheriff
ASSETS
Cash $ 31,851 $ 973,654 $ 870,842 % 11,783 $ 122,880
Total Assets $ 31,851 $ 973,654 $ 870,842 $ 11,783 h 122,380
LIABILITIES
Due to Others $ 31,851 $ 973,654 $ 870,842 $ 11,783 $ 122,880
Total Liabilities \) 31,851 3 973,654 $ 870,842 $ 11,783 $ 122,880
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Paulding County, Georgia

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Agency Funds

For the year ending June 30, 2011

June 30, June 30,
2010 Additions Deductions Eliminations 2011
Probate Judge
ASSETS
Cash $ 141,602 $ 1,970,523 $ 1,920,261 $ 84,459 107,405
Total Assels $ 141,602 $ 1,970,523 $ 1,920,261 $ 84,459 107,405
LIABILITIES
Due to Others $ 141,602 $ 1,970,523 $ 1,920,261 $ 84,459 107,405
Total Liabilities $ 141,602 $ £,970,523 3 1,920,261 $ 84,459 107,405
Court Administration
: ASSETS
Cash % 10,753 $ 643,035 hy 604,336 L 34,515 14,437
Total Assets g 10,753 $ 643,035 $ 604,836 $ 34,515 14,437
LIABILITIES
Due to Others $ 10,753 $ 643,035 $ 604,836 $ 34,515 14,437
$ 10,753 $ 643,035 $ 604,836 $ 34,515 14,437
Totals
ASSETS
Cash $ 2,520,990 $ 126,633,825 $ 126,756,783 $ 544,347 1,853,685
Taxes Receivable (nef) 3,408,179 97,811,105 97,580,980 - 3,638,304
Total Asscts $ 5,929,169 $  224,444930 $ 224,337,763 $ 544,347 5,491,989
LIABILITIES
Due to Others $ 5929169 $ 224,444,930 $ 224,337,763 $ 544,347 5,491,989
Total Liabilities $ 5,929,169 $  224,444.930 $ 224,337,763 $ 544,347 5,491,989
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Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF SPECIAL PURPOSE LOCAL QPTION SALES TAX 1ll EXPENDITURES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Expenditures

Original Prior Current
Budgeted Cost Years Year Tofal
Roads, sireets and bridges $ 40,500,000 $ 28,936,746 $ 4086991 § 33,023,737
Public Safety and Fire Protection
Faciliiies and Equipment 12,156,000 7,701,786 1,479,765 9,181,551
Recreation 28,350,000 11,618,285 7,002,971 18,021,256
81,000,000 47,656,817 12,569,727 60,226,544
Cilies
Dallas Projects 5,580,000 3,584,969 619,111 4,204,080
Hiram Projects 3,420,600 2,197,239 379,455 2,576,694
Total City Projects 9,000,000 5,782,208 998,566 6,780,774
Total SPLOST Projects $ 90,000,000 $ 53439025 § 13,568,293 § 67,007,318
Non-SPLOST expenditures*
Roads, streets and bridges b - $ - % 4710704 3% 4,710,704
Public Safety and Fire Protection
Facilities and Equipment - - - -
Recreation - - 110,677 110,677
- - 4,821,381 4,821,381
Total Projects $ 90,000,000 $ 53439025 § 18389674 $ 71,828,699

*Paulding County uses Intergovernmental Revenues as well as contributions from ofher parties (0
expand our SPLOST projects. Contributions to the SPLOST Projects are as follows:

State Department of Transportation $ 4,255,000

City of Dallas 216,400

U.S. Departinent of Energy 51,000

Governor's Emergency Management Agency 59,677

Developers 239,304 t
$ 4,821,381
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Paulding County, Georgia
SCHEDULE OF SPECIAL PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX IV EXPENDITURES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Expenditures

Original Prior Current
Budgeted Cost Years Year Total
Roads, sireets and bridges $ 47,528,348 $ - 3 - -
Public Safety and Fire Protection
Facilities and Equipment 17,554,024 - - -
Recreation 16,560,400 - - -
Economic Development: Fiber
Optic Communications 1,159,228 - 2,524 2,524
$2,802,000 - 2,524 2,524
Cities
Dallas Projects 6,840,000 - 247,429 247,429
Hiram Projecls 5,358,000 - 193,819 193,819
Total City Projects 12,198,000 - 441,248 441,248
Total SPLOST Projects 5 95,000,000 $ - § 443,772  § 443,772
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I1T. Statistical Section
(Unaudited)




This part of Paulding County’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statement, note disclosures and required supplementary information says about the
County’s overall financial health.

Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the

County’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 103
Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the readers assess the County’s

most significant local revenue sources — It is property tax 108
Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the readers assess the affordability
of the County’s current levels of outstanding debt and the County’s ability to
issue additional debt in the future. 112

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help readers

understand how the information in the County’s financial report relates to the

services the County provides and the activities that take place. 117

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help readers understand

how the information in the County’s financial report relates to the services the

County provides and the activities it performs, 119

Except where noted, the information in these schedules is derived from Paulding
County’s comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. Paulding
County implemented GASB 34 in 2003; schedules presenting Government-wide
information include information beginning that year.
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Paulding County, Georgia
Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Teu Fiscal Years
(in thousands)

Privately Total Estimated

Owned Personal Total Direct Actual

Digest Real Public and Assessed Tax Taxable

Year Property Utilities Business Value Rate Value
2001  $1,367,336 $ 44395 § 357,251  $1,768,982 735 § 4,422,455
2002 1,902,720 43,840 302,562 2,249,122 7.10 5,622,805
2003 2,179,273 50,409 306,226 2,535,908 7.10 6,339,770
2004 2,192,982 53,121 600,393 2,846,496 7.10 7,116,240
2005 2,548,274 55,928 654,582 3,258,784 7.00 8,146,960
2006 3,087,834 63,713 724,521 3,876,067 7.00 9,690,168
2007 3,451,495 69,459 825,885 4,346,839 9.00 10,367,098
2008 3,622,563 78,043 886,331 4,586,937 9.00 11,467,343
2009 3,334,739 81,707 906,124 4,322,570 10.25 10,806,425
2010 2,660,186 38,174 838,063 3,586,423 11.47 8,966,058

Source: Paulding County Tax Assessors

Note: Property in the county is reassessed annually. The County assesses property al approximately 40 percent
of actual value.

A regular $2,000 Homestead Exemption is allowed on all owner-occupied homes except for purposes of
bond tax levies. A special $4,000 Homestead Excimption (from all State and County ad valorem taxes) is
allowed on owner-occupied residences of persons who meet age and income requirements. A special
$10,000 Homestead Exemption is allewed on owner-occupied residences of persons who meet age and
income requirements. This exemption applies to all Paulding County school ad valorem taxes except to
pay interest on and retire bond indebiedness. Other special exemptions apply as to school ad valorein
taxes based on age and income levels which entitle the taxpayer to credits of 50% io 100% of the tat due.

Note: In 2009 Paulding County's property digest began to deeline due to the housing market.
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Paulding County, Georgia
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Years

Total
Fiscal Collections
Year Current Percent Collections in Total as Percent
Ending Total Tax of Levy Subsequent Tax of Current
June 30, Tax Levy Collection Collected Years Collections Levy
2002 $ 11,096,179 $ 10,571,129 9527% % 522,825 § 11,093,954 99.98%
2003 13,720,440 13,686,074 99.75% 28,393 13,714,467 99.96%
2004 15,535,300 15,522,199 099.92% 13,101 15,535,300 100.00%
2005 17,430,040 17,040,577 97.77% 389,463 17,430,040 100.00%
2006 19,306,000 18,580,842 96.24% 725,158 19,306,000 100.00%
2007 24,891,000 24,205,505 97.25% 649,495 24,855,000 99.86%
2008 36,780,000 34,836,405 94.72% 926,346 35,762,751 97.23%
2009 38,747,703 36,369,822 93.86% 796,316 37,166,138 95.92%
2010 37.490,235 35,775,796 95.43% 926,346 36,702,142 97.90%
2011 34,483,322 33,174,644 96.20% - 33,174,644 96.20%

Source: Paulding County Tax Commissioner
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Paulding County, Georgin

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

Governmental Unit

Direct:
General Obligation Bonds

Total Direct

Overlapping:

Paulding County School District:

General Obligation Bonds
Capital Leases

City of Dallas

Intergovernmental Contracts
GEFA Loans

Toial Overlapping:

Total Direct and Overlapping

As of June 30, 2011

* Estimated percentage applicable is calculated based on assessed property value.
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Estimated
Estimated* Share of
Debi Percentage Overlapping
Qutstanding Applicable Debt

79,385,000 100% 79,385,000
79,385,000 79,385,000
141,015,000 90% 126,913,500
1,642,471 90% 1,478,224
6,445,000 6% 386,700
4,444,096 6% 266,646
153,546,567 129,045,071
232,931,567 3 208,430,071
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Paulding County, Georgia
Demographic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Personal
Income Per
Fiscal {amounts expressed Capita Unemployment
Year Population (1) in thousands) Income (2) Rate (3)
2001 88,798 $ 2,132,040 b 24,010 2.5%
2002 94,184 2,213,512 23,502 3.6%
2003 100,071 2,351,869 23,502 4.1%
2004 106,075 2,459,985 23,191 3.5%
2005 113,807 2,639,298 23,191 3.6%
2006 120,841 2,844,114 23,536 4.0%
2007 125,351 2,870,413 22,899 4.0%
2008 127,906 2,877,118 22,494 6.3%
2009 133,135 3,932,675 29,539 10.7%
2010 136,655 4,428,032 32,403 10.8%
2011 142,324 4,773,974 33,543 10.5%

(1) Source: U. 8. Census Bureau estimate

(2) Source: Bureau of Economic Accounis

(3) Source: Georgia Department of Labor

117




Employer
Paulding County Board of Education
Paulding County Government
Wal-mart Associates Inc.
WellStar Health System Inc
Home Depot
Metromoni Presiress Company
Target Corporation
Jim-N-Nicks
Shaw Industries
Kroger
BeliSouth Telecommunications
Aiken Grading
Publix Super Markets
Rambo Nursery
Source: Georgia Department of Labor

Paudling County, Georgia
Principal Employcrs
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2011 2002
Perceniage Percentage
of Paulding of Paulding
County County
Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
3808 1 6.37% 1300 1 2.69%
777 4 1.30% 601 2 1.24%
1008 3 1.69% 500 3 1.04%
3789 2 6.34% 350 4 0.72%
150 8 0.25% 130 7 0.27%
200 6 0.41%
160 7 0.27%
130 9 0.22%
219 5 0.45%
671 5 1.12%
115 B 0.24%
920 9 0.19%
221 6 0.37% 88 10 0.18%
30 10 0.05%
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